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To be a preferred partner To provide quality and
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complete financial solutions services and products to our
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NOTICE OF THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING [/

MNotice is hereby given that the Third Annual Generl Meeting of the Shareholders of J5 Bank Limited wiil be heald
on 30th March, 2009 at %30 am at the Beach Lusury Hotel, Karachl to transact the following business.

Ordinary Business

1. To confirm the minutes of the Anpual General Meeting held on March 29, 2008.

2. To consider and approwve the Audited Financlal Statemenis of the Bank for the year ended
December 31, 2008 together with the Directors' Report and Auditors' Report theneon;

3. To appoint the Auditors for the year 2008 and to fin thelr remuneration. Present auditors Messrs, Ford
Ahodes Sidat Hyder & Cow, Chartered Accountants retine and belng eligibde have offersd themselves for

re-appalntment.

4, Any ather business with the permission of the Chalrman,

Karachk March 03, 2009, By Order of the Board
Muhammad Yousuf Amanublah
Company Secretary

Maotes:

(I} Share transfer books of the Ban® will mmain closed from March 24, 2009 o March 30, 2008, (both days
Inchusive)

(ii} A member of the Bank entitled io attend and vote may appoint another member as hisher proxy to
attend and vote instead of him/her.

(i} Proxies must be received at the Reglstered Office of the Bank not less than 48 hours before the time
of the meeting.

[} Beneficial owners of the shares reglstered in the name of Central Depository Compary of Paklstan
ICDC) andfor their proxes are required to produce their original Computarized Mational identity Card
[CNIC) or passport for identification purpose at the time of attending the meeting. The form of the proxy
must be submitted with the Bank within the stipulated time, duly witnessed by two persons whose names,
addresses and CHIC numbers must be mentioned on the farm, along with attested copies of the CNIC ar
the passport of the beneficial cwner and the proxy. in case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’
resolution/power of attormey with specimen signature shiall be submited {unbess it has been provided
earlier) along with the proxy form of the Bank.

v} Sharcholders are sequested to notify Immediately for any change (o their address
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DIRECTORS' REPORT ===

We are pleased to present the Third Annual Report of 15 Bank Limited )% Bank®) along with the audited sccounts
and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended December 31, 2008,

Econamic Revbew

Pakistan's econonmy appears to be turning the carner. Macrodconomic Indicators have started showing signs of
Imprevemient, A sharp fall In intermational commaodity prices has helped ease trade and current account deficits,
while headling Inflathon has started s downwards spiral afrer peaking in August 2008, Moreover, forelgn
eichange reserves which bad fallen to e lewe of USS 660 bn (10 weeks of impart cover) have now stabillzed af |ust
ouer USS 10 billion due tora comblnation of IMF and multl-lateral funding as wall a5 structural Improvements in
Pakistan's balance of payments,

Whille the external account situation has improved in recent months, the economic siowdown led by the siowdown
I the large scake manufacturing sector has started to affect the banking Industry, High Interest rates and a
cycilcal slowdowen in the economy have raised concerns on asset quality, Moreowver, a comtraction (n Net Forelgn
Assets has affected banking sector deposits with grosvth falling to 79 In 2008 as against a S-year (2003-07) CAGR
of 18%. Though the banking sector i llkely to consolidate in the immediate term, Pakistan’s under banked status
[credit penetration of only 30%) offers significant untapped [ong-temmn potential in the seclor,

Financial Performance Review

Craring the year, J5 Bank attalned a profit after tax of Rz 54,77 milllon as compared to profit after tax of As 3543

milicn during the preceding year. Mark-up income has been a majos contributor towards our totad income, Momeoer,
nor-mark up Income also gresw by 189,

The batance sheet grew stronger im 2008 with the asset side of the Bank improving due to Righer business volumes.
Tortal assets stood at Rs 21,54 billkon from As. 20,33 billlon as at Decembar 31, 2007 which was driven by a 50%
Increase in advances: Being locused on cove deposits, our deposit base has increased from Rs 13.68 billion to

Rz 15.28 billion,

Summarized financial data: {Rupees in 003)
2008 2007
Deposits and other accounts 15294273 13,679.898
Imvestmiants £ 119,959 6,309,536
Advances 5.5599,199 &475,9463
Profit before tax 111,225 (62,221]

Pursuznt to BS0 Circular reo, 4, dated Febrsany 13, 200% of the 5B the Impalmment 3oss resulting from the valuation
of listed aquity securnthes held umder ‘Avallable-for-sale’ category of investments as on December 31, 2008 has not
bean recognized in the profit and loss acoount and has been taken to "Deficit on revaluation’ account as shown
on the balance sheat. Had the abéwve loss been recognized in the profit and 2oss acdount, itwodld have resulted
ina decrease in tax charge for the year amounting to Rs, 18568 milllen {with a corresponding increase in deficit on
revaluation of securities) and profit would have been turmed into loss of Rs431.74 million. Eamings per share would
have resulted in loss per share of Re. 0.B3,




Theimpairment loss will be taken to the profitand loss account in the year 2009 on a quarterly basis after adjustment
for the effects of price movemants In that year,

Business Development

The moll-out of the Retall Banking Group has been the single maost high profile development at J5 Bank in 2008. The
Retail Banking Grouyp has been repositioned with the aim of fulfllling the Bank's vision of becoming a serous, mid-
sized, performance driven bank In Pzkistan In an extremaely short time frame.

There have been multiple comprehensive inltiatives that have been launched in the Retall Banking Group covering
a wide array of business areas such as SME Banking, Service Guality, Alternate Delivery Channels, Branch Banking,
Business Intelligence. Product Development and Marketing and Corporate Communications.

In line with the bank's growth strategies, considerable energy and resources have been comminted to the branch
expansion plan which has seen the Bank increase its branch network from 9 branches/sub-branches to 39
branches/sub-branches in 13 cities across all four provinces of Pakistan and Azad Kashmir, This rapid expansion
In owr network is designed to achleve the size and scale for the Bank to service newer customer segments in more
cities across Pakistan, The physical expansion of the Bank will help us reach a critical mass of customers. Such &
solid base Is 2 pre-requisite to take the Bank to the naxt level as a customer-centric, service ordented Institution
with a broadened product sulte at a national level. The Bank plans to umveil BO new branches/sub-branches across
Pakistan before the end of 2009 bringing our countrywide netwark total to 119 real-time online branches. With
the completion of these new branches, IS Bank will have a network presence which will be competitive with any
mid-sized bank in the country and will be able 1o service customers, mot just in metropolitan markets but also in
varigus sub-urban, peri-urban and underserved markets across Pakistan,

Considerable focus In product development will continue to be placed on new technofogy and Alternate Delivery
Channels (ADCs) to cultivate a competitive advantage in 2009, Efforts will be made to launch a plethora of new
techinalogy products by playing on the strengths of our cutting edge core Danking systern, Temenos T-24. Agreements
have already been signed with leading service providers in the industry for the deployment of ATMs, Branchless
Banking, Network Debit Card and a Customer Facifitation Center, These will not only enable the Bank to faunch all
these Initiatives according to the highest levels of service excellence but will also ensure that the Bank has these
initiatives onling within a very short time to market.

Auditors

The retiring auditors M's Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder & Ca, Chartered Accountants, {3 member firm of Ernst & Young
Global Limired) being eligible, offer themasehes for re-appointment. The Audit Committes of the Bank has
recommended thelr re-appointment util the conclusion of the next AGM.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited while assigning & positive outlook, has maintaired the long-term and
short-term entity ratings of the Bank at A- [*Single A minusT) and the short term mating at A2 (CA Two®L.

These ratings denote s low expectation of credit risk emanating from a strong capacity for timely payment of
financial commitments.

15

Staterment on Internal Contrals

The maragement acknowiedges its responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate systems of internal
controls and procedures. Accordingly, the management has developed pelicias and procedures and Internal contral
evaluation charts across 2l areas of the organization. These policies and procedures are first approved by the senior
management and thereafter forwarded to the Board of Directors for final approvel. The Bank's Intérnal Audit function
continues to monitor compliance with these polickes and procedures and regularly communicates findings to the
Board through the Audit Committes.

During the year the management has reviewed the system of intemal controls in sccordence with established
benchmarks including the "Committee of Sponsoring Organizations” (COS0) Framework. The Management in
consultation with the external auditors has also devised testing strategies that mest the requirements of reflevant
International benchmarks (PCACE Standards) for evaluating the results of testing activities. With the testing activithes
underway, management is geared to comply with the requiremnent for certification of imternal contnols upan
finalization of reporting formats between the various regulaon

Risk Management Framework

The Bank has been proactive in sdopting measones To manage, monitor and mitlgate risks assoclated with banking
sctivities and has placed great emphasis In the development of an effective risk management framework which
contributes owards the effective allocation of the Bank's Capital The Integrated Risk Management Commities
(IAML) and Assets & Liabilities Committes (ALCD) oparate within an established framewaork In onder to monitor the
Bank's activithes and maintain the business risk level within predefined limits. These commitiees meet on a regular
basis o review markiet developmant and the level of inancial risk exposue (o the Bank. A sound structure of
Board's Sub-committes an Risk is also in place which keeps an éye on the overall risk profile of the Bank.

The Bank also has a comprehensive risk management framework commensurate with the nature of its
business, which includes:

# Clearly defined risk mansgement policies and procedures oovering risk identification, acoeplance,
rmeasurermant, manitonng, reparting and control

* A well consthiuted centralized organizational structure defining roles and responsibilities of individuals
Imvalved in risk taking and management.

= An effective management Information system that ensunes & smooth fiow of information from the
operationsd Evel to top mansgement and a system to address any exceptions observed. Any deviation
to the approved standards (s explicitly approved by the competent suthority kevel

e A mechanism toensune an on-going review of systems, policies and procedures for risk manzgement and
procedures to adopt changes.
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It ks kmipesrzanst 1o note that the last quarier of FYDB represenied a sharp reversal In the overall economic emanonmient,
This was particulary pokgnant in the inter-bank Ireasury market culminating in a systemic liguidity criss. IE is worth
painting out that the meticulously designed risk managements systems and Internal control processes mentioned
2bove were put to a practical test. We are happy to report that it was precizely thess measunes that ensured that
the Bank managed to with-stand the severs market environment unscathed. Pro-active management steps as a
result of our controls helped us mediate liguidity gaps and clircumyvent helghtened interest rate risks,

Staterment on Corporate and Financlal Reporting Framework

The Directors confirm complance with the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Code of Corporate Governance for the following:

= The financial statements prepared by the management presant fairly the swte of affaissof 15 Bank, the
results of its operations, Cash Fiow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity.

& Proper books of accounts of the Bank have been malntained.

* Accounting pollcies a5 stated Inthe notes to the accounts have been consistently applied in the preparation
of financlal staternants and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

* |niernational Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of the
financial stabements.

® The system of internal controls i sound in design and his been effectively implemented and monitored,
* These are no doubits about the Bank's ability a3 a going contem.

# There has been no materal departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detalied in the
[esting regulations

& The details of outstanding statutory payments, If any, have been adequately disclosed in the financial
statements.

Employee Benefits Scheme

The Bank operates a funded provident scheme covering all its permanent employees. The un-audited balance of
the fund as at December 37, 2008 was Rs, 48 million (December 31, 2007: Re. 16 milllon.)

1w

Board Mestings

Six meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Year 2008. The attendance of directors at Board Meetings
is as follows:

Name of Director Eliglble to attend Meetings attended
Jahangir Siddigui, Chalrman [
Mazhar-ul-Hag Siddigui
Magbool A Soomro

Ashralf Mawabd

Rafigue R, Bhimjee

Syed Amjad Al

Basir Shamsie

Naveed (Jazi, President & CEO

Pattern of Shareholding

The Staternent of Pattern of Shareholding as on December 31, 2008 appears on page no. 92 and ncludes the
transactions carried out by the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financlal Officer, Company Secretary and
their spouses and minor children.

oSk B B BROh
B S da B ki OEW WD LR

Rights lssue

The Board in its meeting held on September 29, 2008 had approved 20% right shanes at par value Le-Rs. 1,102.126,750
(110,212,675 shares), The amount received has beéen converted into paid-up capltal The unsubscribed portion
has been subscribed by the sponsors subsequent to year end which reflects a strong commitment from the
sponsors to meet the minimum capital requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan.

Acknowledgement

We would like 10 express our sincere thanks and gratitude for the guidance provided by the State Bank of Pakistan
{58P), the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF) and the Karachi Stock Exchange {Guarantee]
Limited {KSE). We would also like to thank our valued clients for thelr continued patronage and confidence. The
Board would also like to place on record its appreciation for the hard work, dedication, professionalism and sincere
efforts of the senlor manesgement, officers and staff of 15 Bank.

Jahangir Siddigui
Chalrrran

Karachi March 02, 2009
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST =
PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Periaod ended December 31, 2008,

This staternent i being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance as requlred under Prudential
Regulation Mo, G-1 - Responsibifities of the Board of Directors, vide BSD Circular Ma15 dated June 13, 2002 for the
purpases of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a Bank s managed in compliance with the
best practices of Corporate Goswirnance.

1,

10,

11

12
13

14,

15.
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The Bank encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directoss representing
minaity interests on its Board of Directors, A present the Board includes six non-executive directors
Including three Independent directons

The directars have confirmed that none of them ks serving as a director in mone than ten listed companies
inciuding the Bank,

All the resident directors of the Bank are reglstered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment
of any laan to a banking company, & Divelopment Financlal Institution (DF) or a Non Banking Finance
Company {(NBFC) or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declired as a defaulter by that stock
exchange.

MO casull vacancy ocournsd in the Board during the wear

The Bank has prepared a Statement of Ethics and Business practices, which has been signed by all the
Directors and employees on jodning the Bank

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, ovierall carporate strategy and significant policies
of the Bank, A complete recond of particulars of Significant palicles along with the dates of approval or
amendment has been malntained.

Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, imcluding
sppointmeant and determination of mmuneration and terms and conditions of emplaoymient of the Chief
Executive Officer [CEQ) and the Executive Director have been taken by the Board,

Al thie mrisset ings of theE Bewing wiispe PerEgichE CraEr I:r:.r1|1r;- Chalrman and the Baard met 5t least once In
ATy guarter. Written notlees of the Board meelings, .|I.::.m; with a :_:|rr'|-|_].'| arid WOPKING pOpErs, s
circulated at keast seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated

The Board memibsers have been providied an ofentation course material to apperlse them of thelr duties
and responsibilites

The Board has approved appalntment of Chief Financlal Officer (CFO, Campany Secretiry and Head of
Internal Audit, including thedr remuneration and terms and conditbons of employment, as determined by
thiet CEQ. The Head of Internal Audit of the Bank has resigned during the year and the Bank Is in process
o hire & new Head of Internal Audit

The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepaned in compliance with the requirernents of the Code
and fully describes the sallent matters reguired to be disclowed

The Financial Statements of the Bank were duly endarsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the Board,
The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest In the shares of the Bank ather than that
disclosed In the pattern of shareholding.

The Bank has complied with all the corpomte and financial eporting reqguirements of the code as applicable
during the perod

The Board has formed an Audit Committos It comprizes three members, of whom all are non-executive
directors Including the Chadrman of the committee,

The meetings of the Audit Committes were held ance every guarter prior b the approval of interim and
fimal resuelis of the Bank as requinred by the Code. The 1erms of reference of the commitiee have been
framed by the Boand and the Audid Commities opemtes within the defined terms of reference,
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The Board has set up an effective internal audit function consisting of a full time intermnal auditor who is
suiitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and s conversant with the poficies and procedures of
thiz Banlc

The statutory auditors of the Bank have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP], that
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Bank
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with intemational Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of athics as adopted by Instinute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed (FAC guidelines in this regard,

We confirm that all other material principles contained In the code have been complied with.

For and on behall of the Board

Maveed Qazi
President & CEQ

Karachl: March 02, 2009,

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practice {the Statament) containad in the Code of

Corporate Govermance (the code) for the year ended December 31, 2008 prepared by the Board of Directors of JS
Bank Limited (the Bank) to comply with the Listing Regulation No. 37 [Chapter X1) of the Karachi Stock Exchange,

whene the Bank ks listed.

The responsibllisy for compliance with the code is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Our responsibility Is
to renview, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement reflects the sutus
of the Bank's compliance with the provisions of the code and report if it does not. & review is imited primarily to
inquiries of the Bank's parsonnel and review of various documents prepared by the Bank to comply with the code.

As part of or audit of financlal statements, we are requined to cbtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal controf systems suflicient to plan the audit and develop an efective audit approach. We have not carried
out any special review of the intermal comtrol system to enable us to express an apindon as to whether the Board's
staternent on internal contral covers all controls and the effecthveness of such internal controls,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to beileve that the statement does nat
appropriately reflect the status of the Bank's compliance, in all materal respects, with the biest practicas contained
In the code for the vesr ended December 31, 2008.

Karachl: March G2, 2004, Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder & Co.
Chartersd Accountants.




AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ==

We hawe audited the annexed balance sheet of J5 BANE LIMITED {the Bank) as at Decemnber 31, 2008 and the related
profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity, together with the notes forming part
thereof (here-in-after refarred to as the Tinanclal staternents’} for the year then ended, In which are Incorporated the
unaudited cenified retums from the branches except for four branches which have been audited by us and we state that
we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of cur audiz

it |5 the responsibiliny of the Bank's Board of Directors to establish and malntain a system of intermal control, and prepare
and present the financal statements in conformity with approved accounting standards and the requirervents of the
Banking Companies Ondinance, 1962 (LI of 1982), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVIl of 1984). Our responsibility
is to express an opinfon on these statements based on our awdit.

W conducted our audit in accondance with the Intermational Standands on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obt@in reasonable assrance about whether the financlal
statements are free of any materlal misstatement. An audit Includes examining, on a test basks, evidence supporting
amounts and disclosures in the financial staterments. An audit also Includes assessing the accouniing policles and
significant estimates made by management; as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the finandal statements.
Wea balieve that our aldit provides a reasonable basls for our oplnlon and after due verification, whidh In case of loans
and advances covered mone than sisty percent 'of the total loans and advances of the Bank, we report that:

{a) in our opindon proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as requined by the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (XMl of 1984); and the retums referred to above receive from the branch name been found adeguate
for the purposes of our audiy;

1] i owr opinlon:

i the balznce sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been dravwn up In
conformity with the Banking Companies Ondinance, 1862 (Uil of 1863), and the Companies Ordinance,
1984 LVl of 1584), and are In agreement with the books of account and are further in acoordance with
accouniing policies conststently applied;

{ii) the expenditure Imcurmed durlng the year was for the purpose of the Bank's business; and
T the buskness conducted, imvestments made and the expendiibune incumed duning the year weane in accomance

with the oblects of the Bank and the trensactions of the Bank wihich hove come to our notice have been within
the powers of the Banlk;

BALANCE SHEET =
As 8t December 31, 2008,
December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS e ——— Rupees in 000 ——
Cash and balances with treasury banks 7 1,285,247 || 977,235 |
Balances with other banks B &TLI7 | 254,079
Lendings to financial institutions 9 1405210 3600211 |
Investments 0 5,119,959 6,309,536
Advances 1 9,699,199 6475963 |
Operating fixed assets 12 2,496,883 | 1,955,360 |
Deferred tax assets 13 271,646 | 126,525
Other assets 14 677,387 | 627,843 |
21,627,802 20,327,752
Hills payable 15 127,922 727079
Borrowings 16 537,655 481,147 |
Deposits and other acoounts 17 15,294,273 | 13,679,898 |
Sub-prdinated loans - ]
LEabilities against assets sublect to finance lease - -
Defermed tax Habilities - -
Other flabilities 18 392,115 245721 |
16,351,965 15,133,545
NET ASSETS 5473837 5,193,807
REPRESENTED BY - -
Share capital 19 5,694,844 || 5,106,337 |
Reserves 18,040 7,086
Unappropriated profit 71,744 27,928 |
5,784,628 5,141,351
(Deficitl/Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 20 (508,791) 52456
5275837 5193807
CONTINGEMCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21

The valustian of listed equity securtieumutual funds held under ‘svallable-for-sals’ categony of investments has

nnmdtl'-mdﬂﬂlm

in ouwr opénlon and to the best of our Information and sccording to the explanations glven to us the balance
sheat, profit and hoss sccount, cash fiow statement and staterment of changes in eguity, together with the
notes forming pan thereof conform with approved accounting standands as applicable in Pakistan and

give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 [Vl of 1863), and the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 DM of 1884, in the manner so reguined and give 2 true and falr view of the state of the
Bank's aifairs as at 31 Decomber 2008 and its irve balance of the prodit, its cash flows and changes in aquity
far the year then endead; and

in our apinion zakat dedociible at source wnder the Zaket and Ushe Cirdinance, 1580 (0471 of 1580, was
dedhchid by the Bank and deposited In the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder & Co,
Chartered Accountants

been armved ar uslhg the markess prices guated on the dock sochange / net assets value ox of December 31, 2008 and
the impairment log atising thenefrom has been included in defict on revaluation of essets - net of tax s allowed by
Srate Rank of Pakiztan. Under the regular sccaunting palkoy of the Bank, the same would have resulted In o change
ta profit and foss sccount of RwS86.506 milfken (net of tax) and, consequently, the unappropriated peofit for the year
wallld have resubted in sccurmulated hoss of Fa. 403808 millkon (e note 10.3],

The anneoed notes from 1 1044 form an integral part of these financial satements

Jahangir Siddiqui Maveed Qazi Rafique R. Bhimjee Syed Amjad Ali
Chairmman President & Chief Bxecutive Diirector Direcior




PROFIT AND LOSS [
ACCOUNT

For the year ended December 31, 2008, December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
Mote —— Rupees in 000 ——
Marik-up / Return / Interest Eamed 23 1,975,203 1,130,383
Mark-up / Retumn / Interest Expensed 24 1.361,738 BE4300
ket Mark-up / Interest Income _ 613,465 266,083
Provision agalnst non-performing loans and advances 11.4 11,972 B973
(Reversal} / Provislon for diminution In the value of Investments (754) 754
Bad debts written off directly =i -
1218 &g
Met Mark-up / Interest Income after provisions 602,247 256,356
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee, commission and brokerage income 25 103448 126,542
Divldend Income 344 92813
income from dealing In forelgn currencies 102,575 48451
Gain on sale of securities - net 25 212,805 148,851
Unrealived loss on reveluation of Investments
classified as held for trading (1,307 (4,123)
Other Income 1,383 5766
Tatal non-mark-up / Intesest Income 452,345 418,340
1,004,592 674,696
RON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 27 DD 624 736,263
Other provislons / wiite offs - -
Other charges 28 | 743 654
Tatal non-mark-up / interest expenses 483,367 735917
111,225 {62,221)
Extra ordinary / unusual items L g
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation 111,225 {62,.221)
Taation - Current 29 | - (6,556
- Prlor years B %
- Deferred 13 (56,455) 104,208
(56,455 97 652
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 54,770 5431
Unappropriated profit / (loss) brought forward 35,014 417
Profit avallable for appropriation £5.784 35,014
Basic Earmnings per share (Rupee) 30 0.11 0,07
Diluted Eamings per share (Rupes) 30 .11 0.07

Thee wakmtion of isted equity securtiestmusunl fumds hefd tnder svallable-for-sale’ category of Fnestments has been arrived &t using
the rmadket prices guated on the sock exchangefner misets value i of Deceraber 31, 2008 ard the impairment kst aksing thenefesm
haed besent included In deflelt on revaluation of pssers - net of e os allowed by Stets Bank of Pakisten. Under the requllsr accounting
policy of the Bank, the wame wolld have rslted i g chaspe to praft and o seeount of RLGT2 162 milllon and, contequsnily, the
profi for thie yeas would ke restilbed in less of Re431 736 million (see nots 10.3)

The annesed notes from § 1044 horm an infegrel g of these Minenclal detement

Jahangir Siddiqui Maveed Carl Rafique R. Bhimjes Syed Amjad All
- Chalrman President & Chief Executive Director Director

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2008,

CASH FLOWY FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit / (Loss) before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:

Depredation

Amortisation of intangibles

Amortisation of defermed cost

Charge for defined benefit plan

Unreallsod |ass on evaluation of iméestments
classified as held for trading

Reversal of provision agalnst non-performing advances

Provision against non-performing advances

[Reversal) / provision for impairment in the
vilwe of Envestrments

Gain on sale of fixed assets

(increase) / decrease In operating assets
Lendings to financlal Institutions

Held for trading securities

Advances

Other assets

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable

Borrowings

Depasits

Other Eablities

Income tax paid
Net cash fiow from / {used in) operating activities (Balance off)

Decembser 31, December 31,
2008 2007
m— Rupees. In 00—

111,225 {62.221)
(73,441) {92,813}
37,784 {155,034)
TRE1S| 75,856
48,700 191,839

- | 6,736,
Q825 1.239
1,307, 4123
(1,928) (5,095)
13,900 14,068
{754) 754
_E7 (5,766)
149,043 243,754
185,833 88,720
2,196,001 (775,299)
90,053, {115,367
(3.235,208) {4,792,105)
Bascoialdi| {409,187}
[954,151) {6.091,958)
(588 257 | 116,556
63,355 | {328,845},
1,51#.3?5: 6,481,743
1.215,041 5,575,072
220,890 {516,886)
(4,547) {32,718)
403,176 {460.884)




December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Note ——— Rupees in 000 ——
MNet cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (balance b/f} 403,176 (460, 884)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Met investrment in available for sale securithes 336,144 (3,561,361}
Dividend inooms 73440 92813
investment in operating fiooed assets 671,152) (339,130)
Sale proceeds of property and equipment disposed-off 930 11,849
Met cash used in investing activities (258.632) (3, 795.839)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
e of share capital 288,507 102112
MET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 588,507 2102012
Effects of exchange rate changes an
Cash and cash equivadents ' .
Increase f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 733,051 (2,154.601)
Cish and cash equivaients at beginning of the vear 1,221,332 3375943
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31 1.954373 1221323

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Jahangir Siddiqui Maveed Cazi Rafique R Bhimjes Syed Amjad Ali
Chairman President & Chiof Exacutiva Director Director

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended December 31, 2008,

ssued, subscribad  Statutory Unappropriated Total
and pakd-up FESEME profit
share capital
e FpES i OO0
Balance as at January 01, 2007 3,004,225 - (#17) 3,003,808
ssue of ordinary shares of RL1D
each agalnst cash 2102112 = = 2102112
Met profit for the year - - 3543 35431
Transfar to statulony reserve - 7,086 (7,085} -
Balance a% o1 Decarmber 31, 2007 5,106,237 7,086 27,028 5,141,351
Issue of ordinary shanes of R&T0
each against cash 588,507 - - 588,507
Met profit for the year - - 54,770 54770
Transfer to statubory reserve . 10,954 (10,954) -
Balance as at December 31, 2008 5694 844 18,040 7,744 5784628
The annexed notes from 1 1o 44 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Jahangir Siddigui Maveed Qaxi Rafique R, Bhimjee Syed Amjad Al
Chalmman President & Chief Executive Diirectior DHrectow
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2008

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

1.2

J5% Bank Limited (the Bank], incorporated In Pakistan, Is o scheduled bank, engaged in commercial banking
and related services, The Bank is listed on Karachi Stock Exchange in Pakistan, The Bank 14 a subsidiary
of lahanglr Siddiqul & Company Limived LSCL) The registered office of J5 Bank |s shuated at Shaheen
Commercial Comples, D Sauddin Ahmed Road, Rarmchl and it operates with 3% (2007; 9 Branches
sub-branches in Pakistan. The Pakistan Credit Rating Agéncy (Privatel Limited (PACRA) has asshgned
thelong term ered|t rating of the Bank at &- ("Sngle A minus”) and the short term @tieg at A2 (A Twa®)
with a positive outiook.

Jzhanglr Siddicqul Investment Bank Limited (FSBL} and |15 holding company, Jahangir Siddigul & Company
Limited (15CL), entered into & Framework Agreemsent with American Express Bank Limited, Naw York
(AMEX) on Movembser 10, 2305 for acquisition of fts American Express Bank Liméited [AEBL) Pakistan
Chperattons, Consegquently, a new banking campany, )5 Bank Limited {J58L) was incorparated on March
15, 2006 and a restricted Banking License was issued by the State Bank of Pakistan [SBP] on May 23, 20048,

Further, a Transfer Agreemant was execuled on June 24, 2006 betwean JSIEL and 158L for the transfer of
entire business and undertaking of JSIBL to J5BL The shareholders of I51BL and 1584 In thelr mspective
exira ordinary general meetings held on July 31, 2006 approved a Scheme of Amalgamation [the Scheme)
under Section 48 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 19462, The Schemse was inltially approved by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter No. SOMNBF-C{)-RASIBL2006/51T
dated September 28, 2006. Subsequently, the Scheme was sinctioned by State Bank of Paklstan [SBF)
vide its order dated December 02, 2006 and, in accordance therewith, the effective date of amalgamation
wias foed at December 30, 20086,

2. BASIS OF PRESEMNTATION

in accordance with the directives of the Federal Govermment regarding the conversion of the banking
system o lslamic modes, the 5B has Bswed varipus circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of
trade-related modes of financing include purchase of goods by banks from thelr customers and immeediate
retake 1o tham at appropeiate mark-up in price on defemed payment basis, The purchaseas and <ajes anising
under these arrangements are not reflected in these financal statements as such but ame restricted to the
amaount of faciity actually utifised and the appropriste portion of mark-up thaemeon.

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3a

These financial statements have been prepared inaccordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reparting
Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE) as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1584, and the pravisions of and regulations [ directives isswed under the Banking
Companies Drdinance, 1962 and the Companies Ordinance, 1984, In case requirements differ, the provisions
af and regulations / directives Bsued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies
DOrdinance, 1984, shall prevail,




n

The SBP vide BSD Clroular Na, 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicabliity of Internaticnal
Accounting Standard 39, Financlal Instruments; Recognition and Measurement (LAS 39] and Intermational
Accounting Standard 40, Investrnent Property (LAS 40) for Banking compandes | further instructions,
Further, according to the notification of SECP dated Aprdl 28, 2008, the IFRS - 7 *Financial Instruments;
Disclosures” has not been made spplicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standands
have not been considerad in the preparation of these inancial statemants. However, investrmants have
been clpssified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by SBP,

Accounting standards not yet effective

Thee following new standards and amendments 1o approved accounting standards are applicable
In Pakistan from the dates mentioned below agalnst the respective standard or amendment

Effective date (acoounting

Standard or Interpretation periods beginning on or after)
A5 - 1 Presentation of Financlal Statements (Revised) January 07, 2009
|AS - 23 Borrowings Costs (Revised) January 07, 2009
|45 - 27 Consolidated and Separate Financlal Jarvuary 01, 2009

Statements (Revised)
IFFRS - 3 Business Combinations (Revised) July 01, 2009
IFRS - 4 Insurance Contracts January 97, 2009
IF#S - B Oipardting segments January 07, 2003
[FRIC - 13 Customer Loyalty Programs July 01, 2009

IFRIC - 15 Agreements for the construction of real estabe January 87, 2009
IFRIC - 16 Hedges of & Met Inmvestmient in Foreign Oporation Dctober 07, 2008
IFRIC - 17 Distribitions of Mon - Cash Assets o Owners July 07, 2009
[FRIC - 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers July 01, 2003
IFAS - 2 [jarah January 07, 2009

The Bank considers that the above standards and interpretations are slther not relevant or will

have no materdal iImpact on its financial statements in the period of Inltal application other than to the
extent of certain changes or enhancernents in the presentation and dischosures in the financial statements
o the extent that swch presentation and disclosure requirements do not conflict with the format of
financial staternoents prescribed by the S8F for banks

In addition to the abowe, smendments and improvements 10 varous sccounting standards have also
been issued by 1A5B which are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January
01, 2009, The management ks in the process of evaluating the impact of such amendments and
improvements on the Bank's financial statements for the ensuing perliods.

4, BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for held for
tradding and svailable for sale investments, and derhvative financlal instruments which are stated at fair value.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financlal statements In conformity with approved accounting standards requires the
se of certaln critical accounting estimates. It also requires management (o exercise its jJudgment in the
process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. Estimtes and judgments ane continually evalunted
and are based on histonic experence and other factors, including expectations of future everts that s
bedieved to be reasonabie under these circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
In the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected,

Irs the process of applying the Bank's accounting polices, management has made the following estimates
and Judgments which ane significant to the financial statements;

{a} classification of imvestments (note 6.45;

(B valumtion of derivatives (note 5.5.2);

{e) determining the residual values and wseful [ves of property and equipmant (nole 68}
{d impairment [nate 6.9);

(&) recognition of taxation and deferred tax (note 6.100;
{f proviskons (note 6.11);

g sccounting for post employment benefits [note 6,13);
{h) goodwill (note 5,16); and

{1} segment reporting (note 8.17)

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

6.1

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and balarces with treasury banks, balances with other banks
and overdrawn nostno accounts.

Lendings to f borrowings from financial Institutions

The Bank enters into transactions of lendings to / borrowings from finsncial institutions at
contracted rabes for a specified perod of time. These ané recorded as under

Sale under repurchase obligation

Securities sold subject to a re-purchase agreement [repo) are retained in the financial statements &s
Investmients and the counter party llablity i included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-
purchase value s accrued ever the period of the contract and recorded as an expense,

Purchaze under resale obligation
Secunties purchased under agreement b resell [reverse repo) ane inclueded in lendings 1o financial

Institutions or advances as appropdlate, The differential between the contracted price and resale price
ls amortized over the period of the contract and recorded as income.

i)




Other borrowings

Thiese are recorded at the proceeds received. Mark-up paid on such bormowings s charged to the prafit
and loss account over the period of borrowings.

Trade date accounting

Al ‘regular way' purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, Le. the date an
which commitment to purchasa / saie Is made by the Bank. Regular way purchases or sales of

financial assets are those, the contract for which requires delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the matket place.

imvestments

The management determines the appropriate classification of Its investrments at the time of purchase
and dassifies thess investrments a5 held for trading, available for sale or held to maturity, Thess are initlally
recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given plus, In the case of Investments not
held for trading, directly attributable acquisition costs.

Held for trading

Thiese are securities, which are either acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short
term market / intorest rate movements and are 10 be sobd within 90 days Thees ane carmied at fair valie,
with the related surplus / [deficit) being taken to profit and loss account.

Held to maturity

These are securities with fved or determinable payments and fived maturities that are held with the
Imtenticn and ability to hold to maturity,

imvestrments classified as held to maturity are carried at amortized cost.

Available for sale
These gre iIvestments that do not fall under the held for trading’ or ‘held to maturity’ categories
These are Initially recognized at cost, being the falr value of the consideration given including the
acguisition cost.

In accordance with the requirements of the SBP. quoted securities other than those classified as held to
maturity are carried at market value, Investments classified as held to maturity are carrled at amortized
cost. Ungquoted securities are valued at cost less impalrment. if any.

Further, in accordance with the reguirements of the 58P, surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of the Bank's
hiedd for tradinag investments ls taken to the profit and loss account. The surplus £ (defict) on mestments
classified as available for sale is kept in 3 separate account shown |n the balance sheet below equity. The
surplus / [deficlt) arsing on these securities i @ken to the profit and koss account when actually reatized
upon disposal The unrealired surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securities which are
classified as "held for tading " is taken to the profit and loss account.

Premium or discount an aoquisition of investments is capitalired and amortized through the profit and
logs account using effective yield over the remalining period 1l maturities.

6.7

Provisian for diminution In the value of securities (except for term finance certificates) is made afger
consldering impairment, if any, in their value. However, in the curment year, impairment loss has been
treated as described In nate 10.3. Provision for diminution in value of term finance certificates is made
In accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations [ssued by the SEP.

Prafit and loss on sale of investments is incduded in income currently.
Firancial [mstrumen s

Financial assets and financial liabilites

Financial instruments carmied on the balance sheet includes cash and bank balances, lendings to finandial
Institutions, iInvestments, advances, certain recetvables, bills payable; borrowings from financial insttutions,
deposits and other payables. The particular recognition methods adapted for significant financial assets
and Habdltes are disciosed In the individual policy statements associated with these assets and llabilithes.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instrumenits are inttlally recognized at falr value on the date on which the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using appropriate valuation
technigues. All derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair value 5 positive and as
Habilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value of dervative financial instruments s
taken to the profit and |oss account.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and labllithes are sat off and the net amount s reported In the financia! staternents when
there exiyis a legally enforceable right to s=t off and the Bank intends either to settle the assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and to sertle the labilities simultaneously. Income and
expenses arsing from such assets and liabilities are accondingly offset.

Advances

Advances are stated net of general and specific provislon, General and specific provisions against funded
boans are determined in accordance with the requirements of the Prudentia] Requlations issued by the
SBP and charged to the profit and loss account, Advances are written off when there are no realistic
praspects of recovery,

Operating fixed assets and depreciation

Property and equipment - owned
Dwnied aisets are stated at cost |ess accumulated depreciation and impalrment, if any, oocept capital
weork in progress, which is stated at cost.

Depreciation b charged to nccme wusing the straight-fne method so as to write off the depreciable
amount of the assets over thelr estimabed useful lives at the rates given in note 12 to the financlal
statements. A full month's depreciation is charged in the month of addition and no depreciation is charged
for thee month in which the disposal Is made, The assets residual values and useful ves are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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MNormal repairs and maintenance are changed to the profit and Joss account a5 and when incurmed,

An item of property and equipment 5 derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any galn of loss arising on derecognitlon of the asset Is recognlzed
in the profit and koss account in the year the asset is derscognized.

Intangible

Intangible assets are stated at cost kess accumalated amortization and impairment, f any, except for stock
exchange membership card which Is carried at cost bess impairment, if any. Intangible assets ane amortized
from the month when the assets are available for use, using the stralght line method, whersby the cost
of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful [ife over which economic benefits are
expected o flow to the Bank. The useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, §
appropriate; at cach balance sheet date.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful Iife are carried at cost less any impairment in value and are
nof amortized. Intangible assets having 2n indefinite useful [ife are reviewed forimpairment, annualhy
or more frequently IF events or changes in droumistances indicate that the carying value may be Impained.

impairment

At each balance sheet date the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there s an indication that those assets have suffered an impabrment loss. If any such Indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impalrment loss,
if any, Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and value In use. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be fess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets is reduced
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense immediately.

Taxation

Current

Prowision for curment taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accomdance with the
prevailing laws for takation on income. The charge for cument tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, relating to prior years arising from assessments made during the year,

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising
between tax bases of assets and fiabilithes and their carrying amounts appearing In the financial statements.
A deferred tax asset s recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
ayvailable against which the ascel can be wtilized Defeired tax assets ane reduced to the eictant that it s
no longer probable that the elated tax benefits will be realired,

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences are
expected to reverse; based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. Defemed tax is chamged or credited to the profit and loss acoount,

Deferred tax, if any, on revaluation of investments |s recognised as an adjustment to surplus / (deficit)
arising on revaluatian,

Prowislons

Provisipns are recognised when the Bank hai a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settfe the obligation and a reliable estimate
af the amount can be made. Provisions are revieywed at sach balance sheset date and ame adjusted to
reflect the current best astimata.
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6.15

Provision against identified nan-funded losses i recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty exists
for the Bank to settle the obligation. The loss is charged to profit and loss account net of expected recovery,

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Bank has established a provident fund scheme for all permanent employvees effective from January
01, 2007, Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Bank and the employees, to the fund at the
rate af 10 percent of basic salany.

Defined benefit plan

The Bank operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all employess, which requires contribution to
be made in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. The most recent valuation in this regard
was carried out as at December 31, 2008, using the projected unit credit actuaral valuation method,
Actuarial galns and losses are recognised as Income or expense when the net cumulative unfecognised
actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting perod exceed 10% of the higher of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assety at that date. These gains or losses are recognised
over thie expected average remalning warking lives of the empioyees participating In the plan.

Revenue recognition
Mark-up / return / Interest income on regular koans and advances and investments Is recognlsed on acorual
basis, Mark-up / retumn / interest Income on classified advances is recognised on recelpt basis.

CommEsion is generally recognised as income at the time of affecting the transaction to which it
relates, except on guarantees on which the commibssion s recognised as income over the period of the
guarantee, Fees are recognised when earmed.

Dividend income |s recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves except for statutory reserves are recognised In the financial
statements in the periods in which these are spproved,

Forelgn currencies
Functional and presentation curmency

items included in the financial staterments are measured using the curmency of the primary economic
emdronment in which the Bapk aperates. The financial statements &re presented in Pakistani Rupees,
which Is the Bank's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forelgn currencies ane translated into rupees at the forelgn exchange rates ruling on the
transaction date. Monetary assets and llabilities in foreign curfencies are axpressed In rupee terms at the
rates of exchange rullng on the balance sheet date, Forward forelgn exchange contracts are valued at
forward rates applicable to thelr respective maturities.
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Translation gains and losses
Translation gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account.

Commitments

Commitrments for outstanding forward forelgn exchange contracts disclosed In these fmancial statements
are translated at contracted rates. Contingent liabilities/commitments for letters of credit and fetters of
guarantes denominated in forelgn curmencees are exgiressed bn rupee terms at the rates of exchange nuling
on the balance sheat date.,

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired In a business combination is inltially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Bank’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingant Habilities acquired, Fallowing initial recognition, goodwill is measumed at cost lass any
accumulated impalrment bosses, Goodwill s reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequenthy if
events or chamges In cicumstances Indicate that the camying value miry be impaired.

Far the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acguired in a busingss combination s, from the scquisition
date, allocated to each of the Bank's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-gensarating units, that are
expecied ta benefit from the synergies of the combination, fmespective of whather other assets or Babilities
of the acquiree ane assigned to those units of groups of units,

A sogment 1s a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged either in providing products

of services [business segment], or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (gecgraphical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that ase different from thosea
of other segments.

Business seqments

Corporate finance

Corporate banking includes services provided in connection with mengers and acquésition, underwriting,
privatization, securitizaton, rescarch, debs {govemment. high yield), equity, symdication, IPO and secondary
private placements.

Trading and sales
It includes fixed Income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position securities,
lending and repos, brokerage debt and prime brokerage,

Retall banking

It includes retall lending and deposits, banking services, trust and estates, private lending and deposits,
banking serdce, trustand estates imestment advice, merchant fcommercial / corporate cards and private
labals and retail.

Commercial banking
Commerdal banking includes project finance, real estate, expont finance, trade finance, factoring, leasing,
lending, guarantees, bills of exchange and deposits.

Geographical segment
The Bank has 39 (2007: 9] branches / sub-branches and operates only in Paklstan,
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Assets acquired in satisfaction of daims
The Bank occasionally acquires assets in settlement of certain advances. Thess ane stated at Iower of the
riet realizable value of the related advances and the current falr value of such assets.

Fiduciary assets
Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank in balance sheet.

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
7. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note = Rpess In 000 ——
In hand
Local currency 245,739 101,679
Foreign currencies 108,961 43,403
A4, 700 145,022

™
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With State Bank of Paldstan In

Lecal currency cument account ﬁu;zﬁf ' ?!fl*ilj';]
Fareign curmency aocounts

-« Cach reterve account - non

remunarative 7. 61,300 544,250
- Special cash reserve account -
MErmuUnerative 73 181,927 54,250

= Local US dollar instruments
codlection and =ettierment

account - remunerathve 73 24,943 13715
930,527 831,907

20 306

Mational Prize Bonds 1,285,247 9r7.235

This represents current account maintained with 58P under the requirernents of BSD Circudar No. 18 dated
March 31, 2001.

This reprecents daposit accoont maintsined with SBF under the requirements of B50 Circular Na. 18 datisd
March 31, 2001, Profit rates on this deposit account are fixed on a monthly basis by 5BP. It carries profit
ranging between 0L90% and 3600 [2007: 3.71% and 4.7 2%) per annum,

This represents mandatony reserve maintained to facilitate collection and settlement and to settle forekgn
CuETEncy accounts under FE-25, a5 prescribed by the 582 Profit rates on this account are fixed on a monthly
basks by SBP. It carries profit ranging between 0.90% and 3.60% (2007 3.7 19%-and 4.729%) per annum.




December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
Note —— Rupees in 000 ——
B. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
On curment accounts BB334 36205
On deposit accounts 8.1 155 159
B8 289 35384
Outside Pakistan
Oncument accounts 34035 02,843
On deposit accounts B3 548,747 124872
583,783 217,715
67227 254,079

a1 These camy mark-up at the rate of 3_50% [007: 3.56%) per annum.

82 This represents term placements atsice Pakistan, camying interest rates ranging betwesn 1.48% and
3445 [2007: 2.60% and 3.51%) per annum.,

2. LEMDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call money lendings 2.1 525,000 2115000

Repurchase sgreement lendings
(Reverse Repa) 9.3 880,270 1486211
1405210 3,601,211

2.1 These represent unsecuned call money lendings to Anancial institutions, camying intenest a8 the raoes ranging
between 13.50% and 21.009 (2007: 9.85% and 11.50%) per annum, with maturities up to Febneary 2009,

9.2 These are short-term lendings to various financial institutions as shawn in note 9.4 below,
93 Particulars of lendings
in local currency 1405210 3,601,211

9.4 Securities held as collateral against lendings to financial Institutions

Depemiber 31, 2008
Further
Mot Held by given as Total
bank collateral
— Rupees in 00) —
Market Treasury Bills 841 692,700 99,510 792,210
Term Finance Certificaie - 88,000 - BB,000
80,700 99,510 EED, 210

Decernber 31, 2007
Further
Note Heid by given as Total
bank collateral
Rupees in 000 ———
Mtarkel treasuny bills 1486211 1486211

941 This has been purchased under resale agreements at a rate of 14.9086 (2007: rates ranging between 5.90%
and 5.95%) per annum with maturity in Januany 3009, The fakr value of the security amounted to Rs792.545
(2007 e 1 488, 680] milllon as at Decembser 37, 2008,

942 This has been purchased under resale agreements at rate of 21.00% (007 Nil) per annum with
miaturity in January 2000, The falr value of the security amounted to R4E8.00 (2007: NI} milon as at
Decambear 31, 2008,

10, INVESTMENTS Decernber 31, 2008
Held by Glven as Total
Note bank collateral
101 Investments by type s o
Held for trading securitles
Ordinary shares of listed companies 10.1.1 21,185 = 21,186
Close end mutual funds 10,11 5 s 5
21,19 = 2119
Avaliable for sale securities
Market Treasury Bills 2,851,240 - 2,851,240
Pakisian Investment Bonds 448 672 = 448572
Ordinary shares of listed compankes 450,030 2 450,030
Preference shares of listed company 95,503 . 95,503
Term Finance Certiflcates-listed 688,019 . GBE.01T
Termi Finance Certificates-unlisted 466,533 3 466,533
Suleuk Cortificates 110,000 . 110,000
Closed end mutual funds 3251 = 215N
Cpen end mutual funds 275,000 . 275,000
Advance in respect of Ineestments 100, 0400 ® 100,000
5,806,508 ; 5,806,508
Total Ivestrnents at cost 5827 690 w 5,827 509
Less: Provision for dimdnution in
vlue ol Imvestrments = ) =
Investments (net of provision) 5827699 = 5,827,699
Deficlt on revaluation of held for
trading securities {1,307 ¥ {1.307)
Deficit on revaluation of availabie far
sale securities {706,433} 2 (706,433)
Total Investments at market value 5,119,959 - 5119959

1011 These shanes / mutual fund units were given by Mational Clearing Company of Pakdstan Limited (WOCPL)
under the CFS MX-I square-up programme as sgresd among the Financlers, Karachi Stock Bxchange and

NCCPL on Decemiber 25, 2004, P
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Imvestments by type

Held for trading securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies

Myailable for sale securities

Market Treasury Bllis

Palklstan lnvesiment Bonds
Drdinary shares of listed companies
Preference shanes of listed company
Term Finance Certificates-lisied
Term Finance Certificates-unlisted
Sukuk Certificates

Closed and mutual fursds

Advance in respect of Invesiments

Taotal investrnent at cost

Less: Provision for dimimution in
valug of Investments

Imvestrnents (net of provision)

Creficit on revaluation of held for
trading securities

Surpius on revaluation of available for
sale spourities

Total Investments at market value

Imvestrments by Segments

Federal government securities:
Market Treasury Bilis

Pakistan Investrnent Bonds

Fully pald ordinary shares

Listed companies

Fully Paid Preference Shares
Listed company

Term finance certificates

Term Finance Certificates - Hstad
Term Finance Certificates — unlistad
Sukuk Certificates

Mutual funds

Closed end mutual funds

Cpen end mutual funds

Advance in respect of Investments

Total investments at cost brought forwand

Held by
bank

46,054
69,313
115347

2,920,855
652 604
352,554

95,503
AE22TS
677,707

15,000
293,349
200,000

3670287

5785654

{754
5,784, 500

(4.123)

56,357
5837144

1029
1022

10.23
1024
1025
1025
1027
1028

1029
PO 10

December 31, 2007
—— Rupees in 000
Given as Total
callateral
45,054
65,313
115367
474370 3,353,395
. 652,604
52,994
. 95503
. 462 375
&r7 707
15, (i
- 283 344
: 200,000
471370 6, 1ad 657
47230 5,258,024
: {752)
472310 6257270
{4.123)
22 56389
472,392 6,308 536
December 31, December 31,
2008 007
—— Rupees in ‘000 —
2851340 3,393 338
448672 698,558
471,216 423 307
95,503 85503
688,019 462 375
#566.533 BrdTay
110,000 15,008
321,516 203,340
275 000
100,000 200,000
5827689 6,258 024

1020

1022

1023

Total investrents at cost carried forward
Less: Provision for diminuthon Invalue of investments
Investments (net of provisions)
{Deficit) on revaluntion of held Tor trading securities
(Deeficit) / surmplus on revaluation of avallabkle

for sabe securities
Total investments st market value

December 31, Decemieer 31,
MNote FO08 2007
—— Rupees in 000 —

5827 699 6,258,024

- (754)

5827699 6257270

(1,307) (4,123)

103 (TDE,433) 56,389

515,959 6,309.516

Market treasury bills are for a perlod of three to twelve months and carry a yiekd of 9.84% to 13.85% (2007
H.98% to 94096 per annum with maturity up to June 2009, Market treasury bills ane ellgible for re-

discounting with the State Bank of Paklstan,

These represent Pakistan Investmient Bonds (PTBs) with interest income receivable semi-annually ot the
rate ranging between 7.00% and 11,005 (2007: 343% and 11.34%) per annum with a maimum remaining

term of 8.6 years.

Detalls of investment In Ordinary shares - listed

No.of o, of
sharesof shares of
As.10 each Rs10each

2008 2007

Held for trading
Adamjoe Insurance Company

Lirmited 110 20000
Al Abbas Cerment Limited 196 :
Allied Bank Limbted 281 s
Arif Habib Bank Limited 2237 -
Arif Habi Limited BE z
Arif Habib Securthes Limited i -
Askari Bank Limited 2287 -
Antock Petraleum Limited 15
Attock Refinery Limited m
Argard Nine Limited -

& related party 585
Bank Al Hebib Limited 20 -
Bonk Alfatah Limited 11304 50,000
BOC Pakiinn Limited 17 =
Basicor Pakistan Limited 11,439 =
Crescent Steel and Allied

Product Limited 287 R

Total
paid up Market  Market
value Cost Cost valug value
2008 2007 2008 2007
Rupeses in 000
1 12 Frad 11 AL
P 1 1
3 9 - 2
23 B - 12
i ] - Fi
i 13 - 12
23 ar - EE]
1 P S
1 i ¥
F 12 11
L 1 - 1 -
173 205 2893 189 2685
1 2 - 2
1% 3B - &4
3 5 = 5

43




Mo, of

o of Total

sharesof sharesol  paldup
Re.i0each Ruldeach  walua

208

Held for trading
D5, Industrios Limited 1,184
Dawood Lawrencepur Limited 380
Dewan Cement Limited 1072
Dewan Salman Fitsre Limited 17,564
05 Kivan Cement Limited 114
Dost Steel Limited 4,250
EFU General Insurance Limited -

a related party 166

Engro Chemical Paklstan Limited 43,326
Faujl Cement Company Limited 5400
Fauji Fertilizer Bin CQastm

Compary Limited 456
Faujl Fertilzer Company Limited 244
Faysal Bank Limited 872
First Mational Equities Limited 153
Habib Bank Limdted

389
Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Umited 729
Hub Power Company Limited 532

iC] Pakdstan Limited 52
Indus Motors Company Limited 12
Invest and Fnance Securithes

Limited 36
Jahangir Skddigul & Co, Limited -

PATENT COMpany 14482
Javed Omer Vohra & Compary

Lirnited 4,758
J5 Invesiments Limited -

a related party 1,802
Kot Addu Power Company Limited 66
Lucky Cement Limited 02
Maple Leaf Cement Company

Limited 2,755
Marl Gas Company Limited 5
MCE Bank Limited e
Meezan Bank Limited n
Matlonal Bank of Pakistan Limited 7885
Netsol Technologies Limited 17
MIE Bank Limited 5168
Mishat (Chunian) Limited 235
Mishat Mills Limited 308
il and Gas Development Limited 317
FACE Pakistan Limited 4,368

Fackages Limited ]

2007

=4 - W owl B B M W LA

I3

25,00 1598

_—]

500y

250y

g8

15

N Hgﬂ Ohow e

El
19

=i g N

2673

426
n
15

17
LT

Market
Cost value
20ar 2008

1071 4,179

4,530

PR S <~

10742 ZABE

6435 3F7

3,740 16

Market
value

— Fupessin'DO0———

10311

4.5

9,599

5,604

Mo of
shares of
Rs.10 each
2008
Held for trading
Pak Electron Limkted 219
Pak Refinery Limited 19

Pakiztan Cement Company Limited 113N
Pakistan Intemational Contalner

Terminal Limited - a related party 4
Pakistan Ofifield Limited 27410
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 50,545
Pakistan PTA Limited 13358
Pakistan Relnsurance Company

Limited s
Pakiztan State O Compamy

Limited 24,102
Pakdstan Tefecommunication
Company Limited 295
Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited 1453
Pionear Cement Limited M
Saudi Pek Commeancial Bank

Limited 7
Searie Pakistan Limited 261
Sitara Peroxide Limited B80S
Saner Bank Limited 184
Sul Morthern Gas Pipelines Limited 139
Sl Southern Gas Company

Limited L8536
Telecard Limited 23569
Thatta Cement Company Limited ]
The Bank af Punjab Limited 16
TRG Pakistan Limited 0366
United Bank Limited 2038
Waorld call telecom Limited 3882
Avaliable for sale securities
Adamjes Insurgnce

Company Limited 70,500
Arif Habib Securities Limited 125,004
Atlas Bank Limited GO0, 00K
Azgard Mine Limited

- a related party 2600000
Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited 150,000
Lusehey Cement Limited 425000
MCB Bank Limited 65,000
Mational Bank of Pakistan 190,000

il and Gas Development Limited 100,000
Pak Relnsurance Compamy Limited 200,088
Pakistan Oilfield Limited #1000

FEL]

134

304

AJNK000 6000
168500 1,500

130000 1,500
dE5 000 1,000

- 810

ERL i
5460
15

3,743

10

15
i Li]

Ed

o w

11

22,164
18480
14,143

41,354

219
31,401
13122
11,638
233N

158,539
48,09G

35,189
45,00

HHUII

17
123

kL]
a7

ey B o~

2,180
5,258
Pl

#1318
14,4469
13,590
8178
2 561
4,554
4, Tax

Tdad33

8,780

154,575
#5151

EE¥.rks
20878




1024

10241

1025

Mo, of Mo of Total

sharesof sharesol paldup Market  Market
Rs.10each Rsi0each wvalua Cast Cost value value
2008 a7 2008 2007 2008 007
Available for sale securithes —_— Rupees in 000
Pakistan Petroteurn Limited 09,000 190,000 2080 45,954 47,778 21030 46560
Pakistan State Oi Limited 35,000 - 350 16509 = 5060 -
United Bank Limited 340,000 323500 3,400 45252 37,058 12548 36643

4M 216 432307 179414 451818
Detalls of investment in preference shares - listed
Chenab Limited - 9.25% per annum
Cumiulative preference
chares (note 10 2.4.1) 13357000 13357000 133,570 95,503 95,503 109,187 24434

The Bank has an option o get the shares redeemed, in part, on yearly basls afer fowr years from the date
of lssuance of cumulathve preference shares, The investes company also has option to redesm, in part,
curmulative praference shares after August 2008,

Detalls of Investment in Term Finance Certificates - Hsved

Mo, of Ho. of Market  Market
certificates cemficates  Rating Cost Con walue value
2008 ST 2008 Fad 2008 2007
Rupeas in 000

Askari Bank Limited 2700 - AA 13,481 - 13,584 -
Bank Alflah Limited 20,000 = Ad- 59,845 = 56,761 =
Crescent Standard Investrment

Bank Limited - overdue,

unsecured = 1,000 = - 54 - -
Engro Chemical Pakistan

Limited 55,650 07 A ATEN39 305,085 267091 400.0ES
Faysal Bank Limited 334 - A 16658 . 169M -
ittzhad Chemicals Limited - 2600 . . 3347 - 3330
MCB Bank Limited -

unsecured - At - - ] - 70
MIB Bank Limited 7098 - A 39,9832 - 368,863 -
Fak Arab Fertilizer Limited -

Znd issue 32550 . AA 163,046 - 155,264
Pakistan Mobile Commumication

[Frivata) Limited * 40 - - ] - 1
Standard Chartered Pakistan

Limitad - 15t lssus - 1047 : - 1,723 - 1,741
Trust Leasing & Investment

Bank Limited - unsecured - 2,000 - - 3,841 - 3842
United Bank Limited -

unsecured 17078 12182  AA- 76,827 57250 68,246 56,844

GBRO19 462,275 655458 466,136

Fi3 * Secured and have b face value of Re5000 &ach unless specified otherwiie

10.2.5.1 Other particulars of listed Term Finance Certificates are as follows:

1025

Repayment
Mame of the Company frequency
Askar] Bank Limited Sembannualhy
Bank Alflah Limited Semi-annually
Engro Chemical Sami-anmually
Pakistan Limited
Faysal Bank Limited Semlannusily
KB Bank Limited Semi-annually
Pak Arab Fertilizer Semi-annually
Limited - 2nd lsswe
Linited Bank Limited Seml-anmually

Profit

Rate per anniem

& months KIBOR ask rate plus
1.50%

& mgnthes KIBOR ash rate plus
1.50%

& Months ¥IBOR offer rate phus
1.55%

& months KIBOR ask rate pius
1.40%

& months KIBOR ask rate plus
1.15%
& months KIBOR ask rate pius
1.50%

D45

Details of investment in Term Finance Certificates - unlisted, secured

Mo, of Mo, of Face value per
Mame of the Company certificates  cortificatss  Rting certificate
2008 2007 Rupees
Escorts Investrment
Bank Limited 10 n MA 5,000,000
First Dawood Investment
Bank Limited 10,000 10,000 AR- A0
Eunjah Textile Mills Limited - 1,800
Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited 20,000 AR 3,000
Pakistan Mobile Communication
{Privage) Limited = 2850
Trekker {Private] Limited - 100,000
LG {Private) Limited = 75
Related parties
Azxgard Mine Limited 30,000 0,000 AR 5000
Pak American Fertilizer Limited 30,000 30,000 A 5.000

Maturity Date
February 04, 2013

Movembsar 23, 2002

November 30, 2015

Movember 12, 2014

March 05, 2016

Febreary 28, 2013

March 15,2013
Cost Cont
2008 2007

— Rupees in ‘000 —
16653 313,307
50,000 50,000

- 82000
100,000 .

11,400

45,000

250,000

145,940 150,000

A5 540 150,000

46,533 &1y oy

* Wherever rating of instrumeent [s not svailable or in crse the instrument = unrated, the same has been mansed as WA




1026, Other particulars of unlisted Term Finance Certificates are as follows:

1027

Repayment
Mame of the Company frequency
Escorts Immstment semi-annually
Bank Limited

Chief Executive:
Eir. Rashid Mansur)

First Dawood Investment
Bank Limited
{Chief Executive:
Mr. Rafigue Dewood)

Orfx Leasing Pakistan
Limited {Chief Executive:
Mr. Humiayun Murad)

Related parties
Argard Nine Limited
{Chief Boecutive:
Mr. Ahmed H. Shaildh)

Pak American
Fertilizer Limited

{Chiel Executive:
e, Jandet Bilal)

Sukuk certificates

Mame of the Comparny

Karachl! Shipyard and Enginesring
Whorks Limited

Sitara Chemical industries Limited

semi-znnually

Semi-annuaily

Semi-annually

Sami-annually

Profit

Rate per annum

4. 75% over six months KIBOR
with floor at 5% and cap at
109,

& month KIBOR offer rate plus
1.50 %,

& manth KIBOR ask rabe plus
1.40%

& Months EIBOR offer rate plus

225%,

& month KIBOR offer rate plus
1.75%.

Maturity Date
September 27, 2005

September 11, 2012

January 15, 2013

December 04, 2074

MNovember 29, 2014

No.of Mo al Face vahie per
2008 2007 (Rupess) 2008 07
— Hupees In 000 —
3,000 apog  NA 5,000 15000 15000
19,000 WA 5,000 55,000

110,000 1 5,000

10.2.7.1 Other particulars of Sukuk Certificates are as follows:

Kame of the Company

Karachi Shipyard and
Engineering
Works Limited

Shara Chemical Industries

Repayment
frequency

Semil-annually

Sami-annually

Profit

Rate per annum

Maturity Date

& months KIBOHR ask rate plus  November 02, 2015

0.4%

3 months KIBOR ack rate plus  January 02, 2013

Market  Market

2T L0048 S00T

— Rupees [0 000 —
- 1
- 4
F ¥ B3 s

99.7m 15068 123374

1936486 255673 196067
93340 102548 319383

Limited 1.0
1028 Closed end mutual funds
Mo, of Ba, of Face value per
Mame of the Fund certificates certificates Rating  certificate Cost Cost  valee walue
2008 2007 (Rupens) 2008
Held for trading
Pakistan Premier
Fund 158 KA a 1
PHONC Growith Fund L] WA 10 4
Available for sale
First Dawood
Mutual Fund 3515.80% 309 4-5umr 10 28,164
J5 Value Fund
- i el artend party B7456568 B 745668 5-Star 10 S49.701
LUTP Large Capital Fond
- & related party 24,205,790 14,206 79 4518 10 193,646
321516
10.29 Open end mutuad funds
Mat atee
Mo, of Mo, of value
Mame of the Fund Unkts Units  Rating perunit  Cost
2008 2007 (Rupees] 2008
Relsted parties
Crosky Dragon Fund 1,527 444 X.5Sear 7. 34 250000
HASE Stock Market
Fund 420,563 B 2246 25,000
275,000

Market  Market
Cost value  value
007 2008 3007
— fupess [n 000 —
102454
b
111,302




10210 This represents advance pald for sulxeription of privately placed Term Flnence Cortificates of Allied Bank Lirmited,

103

amaunting ta RL 100 m#lian, having & tenor of ton years from the date of s, with principal repeyreents in seml
annual installments carmying masc-up at the rate of s months BIBOR offer rate plus 0859

Duting the year, the stock exchange Irtroduced fioor mechanlim’ in respect of prices of equity securities based on
the chasing prices a8 prevailing on August 27, 2008. Under the Tioor mechansim|, the indidual security price of
equley securitbes could vary within porrmal clroult breaker [mit, but net below the Aoor price kevel. The mechankm
wias elffectiva frorm August 28, 2008 and remained in place urtll Decemder 15, 2008 Durlmg this perkod trading of
secufities effectively remained suspended on the stock exchanges, The trading resumed on December 15, 2008,
hoverver, thi trading volumes upts Decermber 31, 2008 were significantly lower & companed to the walumes befare
thee incst Buthon of “loos mechanism’, However, pursuant to the 850 Clreudar Letter Mo, 2 dated fanisany 27, 2009 lisued
by the S8F, the equity securithes held by the Bank have besn valued ot the prices quoted on the stock exchanges &g
of Dircemier 31, K08

Furthermare, purssant 1o the BSD Circular No. 4 dated February 13, 2009 ol the SBP, the impairment loss, amaunting
1o REATL 162 million, resudting from the valustion of Eted equity secunties held under‘Availablefor-sale’ category
of Irmvesiments a3 of December 31, 3008 has not been recognised n the prolit and loss accaunt and has been taken
1o Dot o revaluation of asse’ sooount &4 shown on the balande sheet. The saed impairment bosd is reguired o
b taken to the profit end loss account In the year 2009 on & quarterly basis after sdjustment for the effects of price
frcveITEnTs in that year. Henwever, for the purposes of distribution of dvidend, the Impairment loss 23 referred above
shall be treated as o chamge to the profit and koss aceount.

The recognition of Impairment loss in scoondanees with the requinement of acoouniing standands would have had
thi following effect on thess financial statements:

December 31,
ooa

(Rupees in "000)
Increase by provision of diménuton B the vodoe of imvestmients 571162
Deecredse I tax changes [or the ypeas 1B5 656
Profit afver tax would have resutted in loas after 1 of 431,716
Eaiming per shane woilld hawe resulted in loss pes share of Rs. HECER
Decrease in defict on revaluation of assets - net of Tay A56, 506
Unappropriated profit would rewlt in sccumulsted koss of &0, BA

Decemnber 37, December 31,

2008 2007
Note —— Fupees In 000 —-
11. ADVANCES
Loans, cash credit, running finances, etc. - in Pakistan 9.577.349 4,452,950
Bllls discounted agnd purchased [exduding treasury bills)
payable in Pakistan 56,785 147,938
payabile outside Pakistan 143375 -
200,161 147,938
Financing in respect of continuous funding system 11.2 51,333 1,992 747
Advances - gross 9826843 6,553,635
Prowision for non-performing advances - specific 104 (122.085) [113,504)
Prowision for non-performing advances - general 114 {7,55%9) (4,068
(129644} [117,572)
Advences - net of prowvision S550,159 5,475,963
111 Particulars of advances [gross)
1.1 Inlocal currency 9560257 6500635
In foreign currency 268,585 93,000
9828843 £,593,635
1112 Short term (for up to one year) 8,267,956 L E A
Lang term {for over one year) 1,560,847 795,863
9.828.843 6,593,635
112 The fair value of the securities held in respect of continuaus funding system as on Decamber 31, 2008

n3

amounted to Rs23 774 (2007: Rs1,887.687) millian,

Advences include A5.455.504 (2007 Rs.143.604) million which have been placed under nen-perfarming
status as detalied balow:

Category of Classification December 31, 2008
Provision  Prowislon
Damestic  Owverseas Tatal required held
Rupess in '000
Other assats sspecially
mantioned = . i - -
Substandard 351,900 - 351,900 18,481 18,481
Droiabrtifnl = = = - 5
Loss 103,604 - 103,604 103,604 103,604
455,504 - 455 504 122,085 122,085




k1|

1.4

11.41

a4z

Category of Classification December 31, 2007
Prowision Provision
Domestic Owerseas Total requirad held
—— R I 0 ——————
Chiser asiets especially mentioned - . . - =
Substandard 40,000 . &0,000 10,000 10,000
Doubtul . . . . .
Lioess 103,604 103,604 103,604 103,604
143,604 - 143,604 113,604 113,804
Particulars of provision against non-performing advances
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2000
Specific  General Total Specific  General Total
——— Rupees in ‘000 —— ——— Rupess In ‘000 ——
Opening balance 113,604 4068 117672 108,659 - 106,699
Charge for the year 10404 3491 13,900 10,000 4,068 14,068
Amounts written off -, - - - - -
Reversals (1.928) = [1,928) (3.095) | 2 (5,095)
8481 Jam 11872 4,905 4,068 BS73
Closing Balance 122,085 7,558 120544 113.604 4,068 117672
December 31, 2008 Cecember 31, 2007
Specific General  Total Specific General  Total
—— Rupses In 000 —— — Risps I 000 ——

n local cummency 122,085 7550 129644 113,604 4,068 117472

Ir foreign curmencies

The 5BF vide BS0 Circular Mo (02, dated Janwsary 02, 2008, has amended Prudential Regulations in respect
of provisioning agalnst non-performing advances. The evised regulatipns that ane effective from Deosmibser
31, 2008, allow the benefit of 30 percent of Forced Sale Value (FSV) of pledged stocks and morigaged
commercial and residential property hedd as collateral by the Bank in determining the amount of provision
against non-performing advances. Accordingly, the above change in regulstion has resulted in reduced
provisioning by R= 3824 miliien against non-performing advances and a consequent increass In profit
after taxation by Rs.3.824 million

The general proviskon includes provision made against consumer portfolio in accordance with the Prudential
Regulations [ssued by S8P at 1.5% of fully secured conswemer poriielio,

124,085 7,559 129644 113,604 4068 117672

15
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Details of loan write off of Rs.500,000 and abave

There have been no loan write offs or sny other financial rellef allowed 10 a perion during the year ended
December 31, 2008 of As.500,000 or above that require disclosure in terms of sub-section (3) of section
33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962,

December 31, Deoomber 31,
2008 2007

Particulars of loans and advances to directors, Note Rupees ir 000
associated companies, subsidiaries, etc.

Debis due by directors, execiutives or officers of the Bank or any of them elther severally or Jolntly with
ariy othér persons:

Balance ot the beginning of the year T2 1,052
Loans granted during the year 115,058 B8 387
Repaymants (12017 (12,327}
Balance st the end of the year 180,193 FEA L

12. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

121

Capital work-in-progress 12.1 11,442 &0,.440
Property and equipment 129 BE4 261 295,179
Intangible assets 123 1,621,180 1,569,741

2,496,883 1,955,360

Capital work-in-progress

Property and equipment

Civil weorks 2855 10,530

Advance for purchase of vehicles 2.564 5458

Advance for purchase of equlpment 5593 1,655

Intanglble

Computer softwars - 72737
11442 50,440

5d
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%
10

100
10

Rate
5
3333

33.33

773

1463,624

21,000

42,121

21,000

G4.435
1,463,624
84,344
1,569,741

1,621,180

2008
2007

Book Value
as at
B4,562
6,504
a1 ,.068
Book value
as at
a4 3349
150,000
7
192 366

2008
2007

As at
December 31, December 31,

pre

On Forthe December31, December 31,

disposals  year

Rupeeas in ‘000

27

6477
For the
42223
145,580
191,835

48700

42273

L

Cm

27

116
411
527

Accumulated

!

/ Impatrment

42339

42.366

Asat

2007 _
Rupees im ‘000

Asat

21,000
21,000
126,683

126,683
150,000

100,939

1463624
1,463,624
1,762,107

As at

1, 713246
2007

s at

108,139
BOO

100,138

fdisposals 2008

1,463,624
Asat  Additions /

January 1, disposals December 31, January 1, disposals  year

21,000
126583
21,000
126,683
150,000

2008

2007
1463624
1,761,307

161207

ey

January 1, Additions December 31, January 1,

1231
1232
1233
1234
1231
12332
1233
1234

Mote
MNoverniber 10, 2005 between the partles, paid to American Express Bank Limited, Wew York for a peviod of three years.

Intangible assets
1232  This represent the non-compete fes, of Rs. 150 million which was adjusted by Rs 23 317 million vide the stipulations stated in the agreement dated

1231 This represants membership card of islamabad Stock Bxchanga, It has an Indefinite usefuld Ife and s carried at cost.
1233 This represents banking software and license acopeired durdng the year.

Technical know how
Computer software

Goodhwill

Stock exchange card
Non-compate [es

Computer software

Goodwill

Stock exchange card

Mon-compets fes

123

1234 Forimpalrment testing, goodwill has been allocated 1o Trading and Sales” Segment as Cash Ganerating
Unit [CGLY, which is also a reportable segment.

Koy assumptions used in value in use calculation

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based onvalue in use caloulation, using cash
flow projections based on business plans approved by the senlor management of the Bank covering a five
year period The discount rates applied to cash flows beyond the five year perfod ane extrapolated using
a terminal growth rate. The following rates are used by the Bank

2008 2007
Dilscount rate - discrete period 24.4%, 23.1%
Terminal growth rate 10.0%% 1005

The calcuiation of value in use s miost sensitive 1o the following assumptions:

(a) Interest margins
Interest margins are based on prevailing industry trends and anticipated market conditions

(b} DAscount rates

Discount rates reflect management estimates of the rate of return required for each business and are
calculated after taking into account the prevailing risk free rate, industry risk and business risk. Discount
rates aré calculated by using the cost of equity of the Bank.

{c) Key business assumptions

Thesse assuimiptions are important because, by using Industry data for growth rates, managemeant assesses
hiow the unit's positian might change over the projected period, Management expects aggressive growth
In advanices, investments and deposits during the projected periods and thereafter stabllisation In line
with industry tremds.

{dl Sensitivity to changes inassumptions
Management believes that reasonable possible changes in other assumptions used to determing the
recoverable armounts will not result in an impairment of goodwill,

13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - December31, C ber 31,
ﬂwﬂh -mzlﬂ
Deferred tax debits arising from:
Uinused tax iossos 131 &13.2 300,887 185,106
Prowislon against imvestments and loans 5,549 3406
Deferred cost 1414 1,886
Gratuity 2513 2513
Deficit on revaluation of assets 197,642 -
Deferred tax credits arising due to:
Fixed assots {133,765) (171,085
Goodwill {102.524) 151387
Surplus on revaluation of assety - {3.933)
271,646 126525




131 Included herein is a sum of Rs.25.725 (2007: A5.25.7.25) million representing deferred tax asset relating
to Jahenglr Siddigqui Iméestrment Bank Limited in respect of tax losses, expected to be avallable for carry
forward and set off against the Income of the Bank In terms of Section 57 A of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2007, In addition, it also includes deferred [ax asset set up in respect of current year's tax loss,

132 Consistent with last year, deferred tax asset, amounting to Rs.495.420 (2007 Re.529.217) million, on
unused tax losses of American Express Bank Limited - Pakistan Branch, has not been recognized in these
financial statements a3 the Bank ks of the view that due to its operations being in the inftial stages, these
| would be accounted for as and when the same are utilised. At the year end, these unused tax losses
smounted to Rs1,4715.486 (2007: Re.1,51.2.049) million.

Decemnber 31, December 31,
2008 2007

14. OTHER ASSETS Mote e RupRS 0 000 ————
Incoma / mark-up accruad In local curmancy 349,156 190,002
Incoma / mark-up accrusd in foneign currency 2,963 1374
Advances, deposis, advance ront and other prepayTmant 129,037 B7 264
Taxation (payments less provision) 91,503 86,956
Receivable against sale of marketable securities 65,797 242,532
Stationery and stamps on hand 1089 568
Prepaid oxchange fisk foe 504 508
Trustes fee receivable from a refated party 202 BEE
Unrealised gain on fonsvand forsign exchangs conlracts 20,482 9,014
Othaers 16654 8359

677,387 627.843

15. BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakstan MSa75 18709
Qutside Pakistan 8,047 7470

127,942 FALNTe

16. BORROWINGS
In Pakisian 534,510 471,155
Outside Pakisian 3145 9.5992

537,655 481,147

16.1  Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies
In loacal currency 534510 AT1.155
In forelgn currencles 3,145 9592

537,655 481,147

162  Details of borowings from financlal institutions

Secured

Borrowing from SBP under export )

refinancing scheme 1621 S0 (K0 =

Repurchase agreement borrowing 1623 93,510 471,155
145510 AT1,155

Unsecured 1623 385,000 =

Call borrowing 1624 3,145 2.592

Owerdraswn nostio adcounts 388145 89,5992

537,655 481,147

1621 The Bank has entered into agreemient with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for extending export finance
to customers. As per the terms of the agreement. the Bank has granted SBP the right to recover the
outstanding amount from the Bank at the date of maturity of finances by directly debiting the curment
sccount maintained by the Bank with SB2 These borrowings are repayable within sic months upto June
2009 and carry mark-up rate of 6.3% per annum,

1622 This represents colloteralleed borrowing from a commercial bank, against market easury bills, carrying
mark-up at the rate of 14.90% (2007 9.37%) per annum and would mature in January 02, 2009 (2007
February 2008),

1623 These represent call money borrowing from Rnancial institutions, carrying Interest at the rates ranging
betwean 12.75% and 15,65% (2007; Nil) per annium, with maturities up to February 2003,

1624 This represents borrowings of Re.3.145 (2007: A5.9.992) million from Commercial Banks, outssde Pakistan.

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
17. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS Note s AR 11 DO e
Customers
Fieed deposits 5,747,371 6,354,776
savings deposits 1632729 3052699
Curfent atooumts - of-remunerative 2640939 1,580,919
Margin account 14,351 11,633
11,0353 10,999,527
Financial institutions
Remunerative deposits 4,208,938 2,584,667,
Mor-remunerative deposits A0 944 91,704
4,258,882 2,580,371
15,294,273 13,679,090

17.1 Particulars of deposits '

Ini local currancy 14,053,862 12528073
I forsdgn curmendies 1240411 1,151 825
15,294,273 13,679,898

18. OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / interest payable in local curmency 188372 21.857
Mark-up f return f interest payable in foreign curmency 2211 374
Accrued expenses 181 87,652 35,459
Payable in mepact of defined bénafit plan 33 17,065 FEL
Retention money 45,229 5481
Customer insurance 17,908 8323
Branch adjustment account . 5199
Unclaimed dividends 4,302 4328
Gevemment dusties 2,984 1,188
Others 26332 23,192

392115 245721

18.1

included herein ks a sum of Bs.0.242 million [2007; As.0.847 ) milllon payable to related parties.




19. SHARE CAPITAL

December31,  Decermber 31, Decamnber 31, December 31,
2008 2007 Note 2008 o 007
129 Authorized Capital
DOrdinary shares of

1,200,000,000 550,050,000 R0 each 12,000,000 5,500,500

192  bsued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
293,071,893 234,221 250 lssued for cash 1223 4330719 2342212
276412500 276412500 Issued for consideration
other than cash 2,764,125 1764,125

569,484,393 510,633,750 19232 5,604,844 5,106,337

19.2.1 During the current year, the Board of Dinectors of the Bank in its meeting held on September 29, 2008

approved issuance of 20% right shares at par value e Rs.1,021 367 million (102,126,750 shares), Upto
iast date of payment for right shares Le. December 05, 2008 total subscription received amounted to
Rs5B8.506 million in respect of 58,850,643 shares and, 43,276,107 shares remained unsubscribed, The
Board in s meeting held on December 19, 2008 approved the allotment of 58,850,643 right shares to
the shareholders whe had made payments on or before the last date.

Furthir, exercising (s powers vested under Section BS[7) of the Companias Ordinance. 1984 the Board
in respect of 43,278,107 un-subscribed right shares authorised the Chairman and the President of the
Bank toallot these shares to any suftable investor(s) on or before January 31, 2009.

in consequance of the decision of the Board, subsequent to the year end the unsubscribed shares were
offered to Jahangir Siddigui & Company Limited USCL) (the holding compamny), and JSCL subscribed
43276107 unsubscribed right shares,

1922 I5CL held 351,886,444 (2007: 293,238,704] ardinary shares of Rs.10 Each as at December 31, 2008

reprasenting 51796 (2007 57.43%) Hotding.

20. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - net of tax

{Deficit) / Surplus Arising On Revaluation Of

available for sate securities:
Term Finanoe Cerfificates - listed 32.521) 4615
Cirdinary shares - llsted {290, Orog ) 33434
Preference shares - [isted 13,624 (1,055
Closed end mutual funds (218,967) 26,034
Dpen end mutual funds (163,098) -
Govemment Securities (15,375} (6,825]
([ 706,433) 56,385
Less: Retated deferred tax asset / (llability) 197 6432 {3,933]
(508,791} 53456

December 31, Decernber 31,
2008 2007
= Rupees in ‘000 ——
21. CONTINGEMCIES AND COMMITMENTS
211 Transaction-related contingent [Eabilities
Includes performance bonds, bid bonds, wamranties,
ndvance payment guarantess, shipping guarantess and
standby letters of credit related to particular transactions,
i} Governmaent 68,143 51,258
i) Banking companies and other financial instiutions 3,229 15
i) Others 423,175 110244t
454, 547 61517
212  Trade-related contingent liabilities
Documentary credits 766,016 134348
213  Other contingencies
Clalms not acknowledged as debits 57,655 108,457
214  Commitments in nespect of forward exchange contracts
Purchase 2313977 1,547,004
Sale 2,139,944 1,256,303
The Bank utilises forelgn exchange Instruments to meet the need of its customers and as part of
its asset and Habdlity management activity to hedge its own exposuns 1o currency fsk. AL year
end, all forelgn exchange contracts have a remakning matunty of less than one year,
215  Other contingencies
Forward sale commitments in respect of TRCs - 102880
Underwriting commitments in respect of purchase
- of shares of a related party 197,745 155,000
2146  Commitment in respect of capital expenditure 102,798 04,174

22. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Bank, at predent, does not offer structuned derivative products such as Interest Rate Swaps,

Forward Rate Agreements and FX Options. However, the Bank’s Treasurny buys and sells financial
uch

instruments such as forward forelgn exchange contracts.

The management is committed to managing risk and controliing business and financial activities
in a manner which enables it to madmine profitable business opporhunities, avoid or reduce risks,
which can cause logs or reputation damage, ensum compllance with applicabla ws and regulations
and resilience to external events.




&l

The Asset and Liability Committes regularly reviews the Bank's risk profile in respect of derivatives,
Dperational procedures and controls have been established to facilitate complete, aocurate and timely
processing of transactions and dervathe sctivities. These contrals include appropriate segregation of
duties, regular reconcillation of sccount and the valustion of assets and lability positions, The Bank has
established trading limits, allocation process, operating controls end reporting requirements thot are
specHically designed to control risk of aggregate positions, assure compllance with accounting and
regulatory standards and provide accurate management information regarding these activitles.

Accounting policies in respect of derivative finencial instruments are described in note 652,

23. MARK-UFP / RETURM / INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to;
Customers

Financial Institutions

On investmients in:

Avallable for sale securities

Held for trading securities

On depasits with financial Institutions

On securities purchased under resale agreements

24. MARK-UP / RETURM / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits
securities sold under repurchase agresments
Borrowings

25. FEE, COMMISSION AMD BROKERAGE INCOME

Advisory fee
Trustee fee
Cther fees, commission and charges

26 GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES - net

Federal Government Securities
Treasury Bills
Pakistan Imvestmient Bonds
Ordinarny shares = Histed
Cirdlirsary shares - urdisted, of a related party
Term FAnance Certificatss
Mutual Fund Units f Certificates

December 31, Decernber 31,
2008 2007
——— Rupess in 000 -——
1,143,992 196757
195,642 1223183
532835 3523%7
- 33,066
15654 16378
88,080 149,658
1,575,203 1.130.383
1,160,590 746,174
846,905 nea7
114,243 46,479
1.3561,738 BE4 300
31,865 B4, 006
8,863 6,980
62,720 35,556
103,448 126,542
(373) {1,150
15,060 G470
99,155 104,527
- 3,598
3In0a2 19,047
59,541 16,1599
212805 148,891

27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages, allowanoes, etc.
Charge for defined benefit plan
Contribution to defined contributicn plan
Contractor Wages

Brokerage, fee and commission
Rent, taooes, insurance, elactrickty, efc.
Legal and professional changes
Communication

Repairs and makntenance

Travved and other related expenses
Stationery and printing
Advertisement and publicity
Postage and couner service

Samp duty

CDC and other changes

Bank charges and clearing house chirges
Fees and subscription

Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation

Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of defermed cost

Staff training

Dihes

271 Auditors' Remuneration
Audit fes
Code of corporate govermance review fee
Half-yearly review
Special certification end miscelansous services
Dut of pocket expenses

28. OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan

29 TAXATION

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Note — Rupees In 000 ——
383618 245,755
9826 7239
16778 BO37
56,260 24,408
14,072 7205
135,508 o0 550
7337 3474
a.441 11,957
FaFirs 31,454
12,006 2808
27,303 12441
23,258 10,463
5,989 3,138
10,758 7335
3975 4 B85
4922 3888
13,035 17,909
211 4329 #4334
122 TBE1S 29,856
123 48,700 191,839
- 6,736
5318 el
18,369 9,891
QB2.624 Fi6.263
BOO 550
150 4.1
300 200
3018 3433
61 51
4309 4,334
743 B54

The numerical reconciiiation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not boen
presented in these financial staternents due to taxable loss during the year.

Linder Section 114 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance), the Bank has filed the mtums

of income for the to year 2008 and 2007 on due date. The said returns are deemed to be assessed
under the provisions of the prevailing income tax law as applicable in Pakistan during the relevant

accounting ysars




December 31, December 31,

— RUpees in 000 ——

30. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Prafit for the year after toation 54,770 35431

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares

outstanding during the year  (Number) 519,662,890 310,633,750

Earnings per share - basic and diluted [Rupes) 8.1

There 1 no dilution &ffect on basic samings per share.

.07

31, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 1,285,247 77,235
Balances with other banks 672,21 154,079
Civerdrawn Nostro account {3,145) (9,992)
1,954,373 1221322
Number ————
32 STAFF STREMGTH
Pormanent a610 280
Temporary / on contractual basis - =
Bank own staff strangth at the end of the year 610 280
Dutsaiinced 217 177
Ba7 457

33. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

331  General description

The Bank operates a unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees who opted for the new staff
retirement banafit scheme introduced by the management with effect from lanuary 01, 2007.

332  Numberof emplovees under the schemes

The number of employees covered under the fallowing defined benefit scheme is 510 [2007: 280).

333 Principal actuarkal assumptions
The actuarial valuations were cartded out on December 31, 2008 based on the Projected Unit
Credit Method, using the follcwing significant assumptions:

December31, December3l,

2008 20a7 Source of estimaticn
Discount rate 15% 10% Yieid on gowermment bonds
Expected mte of salary
incraase 15% 1096 Linked to discount rabas

December 31, December 31,

—— Rupees in '000 —

334 Reconcillation of peyvable

to defined benefit plan
Prasant value of defined banefit obligation 19,242 9,761
Fair value of any plan assots - -
Met actuarial losses not ecognised {720 (579
LUnrecognised transitional Hability (1,457 [1,943)
17,065 F239
335  Movement in payvable to defined benefit plan
Cpening nes Hability 7,239 -
Bxpense for the year 2826 7239
Benefits pald to emplovess. - .
Clasing net lability 17065 7239
336  Charge for defined benefit plan
Curment sefvice oost 8364 8310
Interest cost 976 243
Transitional Hability recognised 486 485
D826 1239

337  The Bank amortizes transitional Nabiliy over a period of five years.

34. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank operates a contributory provident fund scheme for all permanent employees. The ermplover and
emploves both contribute 10% of the baslc salaries to the funded schema every month, Number of
emplovess covered under this plan are 352 (2007 180), During the year, employvess made a contribution
of Rs.16.778 (2007: Re.8.037) million b the fund. The Bank has also made a contribution of equal amount
o thie fund.

35. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged In the financial statermnents for the year in respect of the remuneration
and benefits to the President / Chief Executive, Directors and Executives ane as follows;




i 2008
President Directors
Bupees in 000

Managerial remuneration 8,250 5,953

Drefined contribution plan ' Fa) 595

Charge for defined benafit plan T4 496

Rent and howse maintenance 4181 2679

Liilities 929 5595

Medical 21 3]
Conveyance and vehicle

maintenanoe 554 30

Bonus 10,000 7.000

26818 17627

Number of persons 1 1

2007

President Directors

Rupees. in 000

Managerial remuneration 5.458 5,826

Defined contribution plan 545 523

Charge for defined contribution plan 455 435

Rant and howss malntenance 2456 2351

Litilities 634 563

Medical 21 12
Conveyance and vehicle

maintenance 514 36

Banis 15,000 9,600

25,148 19,626

Number of persons 1 3

Executives

96,713
7.835
B.056

43,521
B572
1,352

13,830
27,000
207,979

Executives

58,930
4,486
4811

26,518
6,276

534

6337
2r.083
135475

]

Total

111,956
2,359
5326

50381
11,196
1381

14,825

44,000
252,424

%]
Total

10214
5,554
58M

3325
TA73

T

7,232
51,683
180,249

T2

35.1 The President, Directors and certain executives are also provided with other facilities, including free use

of the Bank maintalned cars

36. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of traded investments is based on quited market price. Fair value of unquoted equity
imvestrments is determined on the basis of break-up value of these imestments as per the latest avallable

audited financial smatements

Falr value of fixed term loans, other assets, other Babilities and fixed term depaosits cannot be caloulated
with sufficient redlability due to absence of current and active market for assets and Eabilities and reliable
data regarding market rates for gimilar instrumenis, The provision for impairment of foans and advances
has bean calculated in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy as stated in note 6.7 to these financlal

siatements.

The mpricing profite. efective rates and maturity am stated [n note 41 1o these financial statements.

In the oplnion of the management, the falr value of the remaining financial assets and labilitles are not
significantly different from their carrying values since assets and llabliities are either short term in naturs

or in the case of customer loans and deposits are frequently repriced.

37. SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The: segment analysis with respect to business sctivities |5 as follows:-

Commerclal Payment&  Others Total

Retall
banking banking  settlement

sales

Corporate  Trading &
finance

December 31, 2008

Ruspees in 00

1,383 2468302

4847

1,104,641 51,726

1220477

35,604

Toml Income

2357,077

51848 B.B97 156,842

1,911.471

215324

12,695

Total expenses

Tax gxpense

56,455

Deferred tax

54,770

{155,459}

39,574

5878

1005153 (BOG,830)

22,909

Mt Income f [ lous)

1,735,270 21,757 446

11294547 200,161

8527 468

Seqgment assets (gross)

455,504

Segment non performing loans

129,644

120,644

Segment provision requited

16,351,965

127,923

15,682,607

541,438

Segment labilities

1245

1292

13.00

1
¥

Segrment retusm on net assets (ROA) |

11.74

11.05

Segment cost of funds (%)




Total
1,548,723
1,610,944

6,556
(104 208)
35431
143,604
117672

15,133,945

20445 434

5766

ST0.26T

(¥64,501)

Others

1,677,105

25595
8774
16821

727,179

27,396
34,585
{7,189)
147,938
1025

143 504

Commercial Payment &
banking settlement
117,672

Rupees in ‘000

170,568
813,800
{643,233)
13,825619
1207

652

5,685,573

banking

Retail

saley
1222177
182,506
1039601
12,934,808
A87. 147
1003
8,54

Trading &

g7.24
1,012
06,200

finance

The segrnent analysis with respect to business activities is as follows:-
Corparate

Segment retumm on net assets. [ROAT (56

Total Income

Total expenses

Tax expense

Met income / (loss)

Segment assets (opnss)
Segment non performing loans
Segment provision required
Segrment labilities

Segment cost of funds (%)

Deferred tax

December 31, 2007

Segment Details With Respect To Business Activities

-]
Sl

38, TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank acls as a Trustes of the Croshy Dragon Fund (the Fund], a5 of Decermber 3158, 2008, ret st value
of thie Fumnd s approcimately B 1.122 (2007:Ra.1.858) million. The Bank also acts as a custodian of seme
of the Term Finance Certificates it armanges and distributes on behalf of |ts customers,

39, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIOMNS

Related parthes comprise the parent company, directors and key management personne] of the Bank and
it parent, The Bank in the normal course of business carres out transactions with various related partiss
The transactiens with the related pariies are made at normal market prices.

The detall of transactions with related parties durimg the year are a5 follows

December 31, 2008
Ky
management Related
personnel parties
Advances " i
Opening balance 6,453 339,358
Disbursemeants 33,900 179572620
Repayments {1,047} (179.339.515)
Aalarce as at Decombor 31 39346 £72.503
Mark-up f retum / Interest
Barmed GE3 74,408

December 31, 2008

Key
management Related
personnel parties
— Rupees in '000 —
Depaosits
Opening balance 76426 2717424
Deposits during the year 377304 154,260,721
Withdrawals during the year  (415,771) (155 882,603)
Balance as &t December 31 37959 1,295.542
Mark-up 7 retumm / interest
expensed 2007 286372

December 31, 2007
Key

management Related
—— Rupees [n 000 —

6.7 30 89T

(184 {91 4949}

6493 139358

246 565

December 31, 2000

Key
management Related
personnel parthes
—— Rupees In "000 ——
106,814 653

563,715 45857 853
1554, 103) [43,747,002)
T6A26 2,717 A4

4,143 100,618

The refated party siztus of outstanding recelvables and payable as ot December 37, 2008 s includead In
respectivie notes to the financial statements. Materlal transactions with related parties are given below:

8




Relationship
with the Bank Mature of transacthons

Companbes having common directorship

Purchawe of TRC

Gale of TRC

Sate of Government Securties
Purchase of shares

Insurance clalm recelved
Payment of insurance premium

Parent company

Subscription in right shares
Purchase of shares
Adviaory fee for TFC
Payrment of rent expense
Refund of security deposit

Companles In which parent company holds 20% or morne

Purchase af llxed assets
Sabe of fived pogets

Amaunt paid for services rendered
Purchase of TFC

Sabe of TRC

Purchase of Government Securitles
Sale of Government Securitics
Purchase of computes

Sale of shares

Purchase of shanes

Rient expense paid [ accrued

Call lendings

Commission paid £ accrsed
Commisslon Income

Dividend Income

Advisary fee for TFC

Trustes fee

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
——e Rupees in ‘000 ——

83367 74,374
1,362.552 Ta7. 144
1,630,435

20 -
1,758 3444
14,636 7687
588477 1,207,175
23 -
6250
125
a 1233
- 3,025
&0
- 628
268464 458,134
23,8449 427,211
32573 .
146,139
348
133073 580643
112 423,747
1400 252
5831000 -
4516 9,543
3.-3 s
61,564 74,5595
3,000 10,938
- 41

Dther related parties

40. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY BASEL Nl SPECIFIC

40.1

Trustee fes

Purchase of shares

Sale of shares

Call lending

Faredgn currency purchase
transactions

Fardign curréncy sals transactbony

Purchase of TFCs

Advisary fee for TFC

Purchasa of units

Sale of units

Commission incomea

Scope of Applications

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
== Rupees in ) ——
572 4534
7 3
10
1,010,000
872,050
G96,730 :
. 150,000
- 21,443
506,074
358,130 .
3,260 -

Basel i appiies to the Bank's accounts on a standalone basis. The Bank does not cumently have a
subgldiary or significant minarity interest on which Basal |l can be applied to,

40,2 Capital structung

Tier | capital

Shareholders equity 7 assigned capital

Share premium

Reserves

Unappropristed / unremitted profits {net of losses)
Minarity in the equity of the subsidiadies
Infiovative and other capital instruments {if any)

Less: Goodwlll, other Intangible assets and deficit
on account of revaluation of Available for
sale portfolic et

Total Ther | Capital

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
—— Rupees in "000 ——
56094 844 5,106,337
168,040 7.nas
71,744 27528
5,784,628 5,141,351
2327613 1569741
23371613 1568, 741
3457015 3571610




December 31, December 31,

2004 2007
e oS i) 0] e
Tier l capital
Subordinated Debt jwpto 507 of botal Tier 1 Capital) =
General Provisions subject to 1,25% of Totad Risk
Weighted Assets 7,559 4,068
Revaluation Reserve [Upto 45%) . 23,605
T.55% 27 673
Less: Caloulation difference [expected loises .
w5 eliglhbe prowisions) - .
Imvestmient in commercial entities (50%) . -
Total Ther i Capital 7.559 27671
Ellgdble Her Il capital
Total regulatory capital base = ;
3464574 3.599.283
403 Capital adequacy
Capital management

The primary ohjective of the Bank's capital management s fo ansure that the Bank complies with
a!| regulatory capltal recuirements and at the same time maintains strong credit ratings and
healthy caplial rathos in crder o suppaort its business and to maxdmize shareholders” value,

Statutory minimum capital requirement and management of capital
The State Bank of Pakistan through ite B0 Circular Mo.19 dated September 05, 2008 requires the

mindmum pald up capital (net of losses] for Banks ! Development Finence Institutions [DFs) to
be raised to Rs. 23 billlon by the year ending December 31, 2013, The raise Is to be achieved ina
phased manner reguiring Rs, 5 billlon pald up capital (ret of losses) by the end of the financial
year 2008,

Thie paid up capital of the Bank as at December 31, 2008 stood at As. 5695 billion and is in
compliance with the SBF requirement for the said year

In addition; the Bank was also required to maintain a minimum Capital Adeguacy Ratio [CAR) of
g of the risk weighted exposure of the Bank, Bank's CAR as at December 31, 2008 was 2880 %
af Its risk welghted exposures,

Bank's regulatory capital Is analyzed into two tiers

Tier | capital, which inciudes fully pald up capital, general reserves and un-appropriated profits
a5 per the financlal statements net off goodwill, ather Intangible assets and defict on revaluation
of ‘avallable for wale’ imvestment portfolie.

Tier Il capital ncludes reserves on the revaluation of ‘available for sale” investrments {up to a
migximiiim of 45% of the balance in the related revaluation reserves),

The capftal of the Bank s managed keeping In view the requirements laid down by SBP under
B5D Clircular Nou 19 dated September 05, 2008 for "Minimum Capital Requirements for Banks”,
Thie adiquacy of the capital is tested with reference to the risk-welghted assets of the Bank

The Bank in alignment with its corporate strategy has expanshon plans in the years to comae,
starting from ensuring its presence in all major cities of the country, to providing a range of
innovative financial products & sénvices to a wide customer base. Though the Bank's curren
copital level is adequate to support thess expansion plans In the years to Tollow along with the
risks pssociated with new business activitles, the capital adequacy |s constantly been monditored
and stress tested by using various adverse scenarios, The Bank is In the process of developing 2
fermalized strategy for the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process as lald down by SBP.

The capital to risk weighted assets ratio, caloulated in accordance with the 5BPs guidance on
capital adequacy was as follows:

Capital requirements Risk weighted assets
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Aup=es tn 000
Credit Risk
Portfolios subject to standardired approach
Corporate 625,659 47885685 6,251,767 Lha5 819
Retail 35,995 16,227 399,956 202 841
Banks & DiFls 29, 480 50,406 327,556 630,07
Public sector entity 6,750 . 75,000 .
Saveraign (inciude GoP & SEP) - = = -
Residential mortgage finance 4179 1,566 46,431 19574
Past due loans 43 461 7,400 AB7.904 30,000
Fixed assats 78813 30,850 875,703 I85619
Oither a8ty 28,750 37121 207222 454013
Off balance sheet - non marker related 19,649 5114 218,320 £3,920
Off balance sheet - market related 1,589 493 17,659 6,167
Equity Exposure Risk in the Banking Book 65,009 42349 713324 529363




Capital requirements Risk weighted assets
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Rupees in 000

Market risk

Capital Requirement for portfolios subject to Standardized Approach

Interest rate risk 4,073 2073 45,259 25913
Equity position risk 3.579 10,430 3877 130,375
Forelgn exchange riak 14,009 159 155,653 1,988
Operational Risk

Capital Requirement for operational risks 120,138 B1,215 1334863 1015183
Total 1.079.224 759269 11991388 9450846
Capital Adequacy Ratio

Total eligible regulatory capital held [a) 3464574 3599283
Total risk weighted assets (b 11,991,388 9490846
Capital adequacy ratio {a) / (b 28.89% 379759

41. RISK MAMAGEMENT

Risk Management s a discipline at the core of every inancial institution and encompasses all the
activithes that affect its risk profile, At the Bank it imvolves identification, measunement, monitaning
arnd controlling risks to ensune that

a) The Individuals who take or manage risks clearly understand it ;

4]} The Bank's risk exposure i within the limits established by Board of Directors (BEoD);

(] Rizk takirg decisions are In e with the business strategy and objectives sat by BoD;

d) The expected payoffs compensate for the risks taken ;

e} Hisk taking decisions are explicit and clear

Sufficient capltal as a buffer is available to take risk ; and

ql Risk management function is Independant of risk taking unit .

Keeping in view the dynamics of internal and external emdronment, we regularly réview and
update our Risk Management policy / frameawark and procedurss in atcordance with mgulatony
envimonment and Intemational standards.

Risk management framework of the Bank includes:

a) Clearly defined risk management policies and procedures covering risk identification, acceptance,
measurement, maondtoring, reporting and condrol;

bl Well constituled organizational structum, defining clearly roles and responsibilltes of indhviduals
Invelved in risk taking as well a5 managing it. The Bank, in addition to risk management functions
for varlous risk categories has Instituted an Integrated Risk Management Committeés [IRMC) that
supervises overall risk management at the Bank. The IRMC is responsible for establishing the
Bank's overall risk-taking capacity. This involves an effective portfolio management strateqgy,
keaping in view the eamings growth tanget and capital constraints. The IRME sets the strategic
target and aggregate limits at the Business Group level and concentration limilks {oy industry,
geography. size, tenor) so that one category of assets or dimension of risk cannot materially hamm
the performance of the Bank;

) An effective management information system that ensures flow of Information from operational
level to top management and a system to address any excaptions obsenved; and

d] A mechanism to ersune an ongoing revien of systems, policies and procedures for risk management
and procedures to adopt changes.

While the creerall responsibility of risk management rests with the B, it s the duty of Senlor Manpgement
to devise risk manegement strategy by setting up well defined policies and procedures for mitigating /
controlling risks, duly approved by the Board,

Giving duse consideration to the above-mentiched, the Bank has the following hierardhy of Risk Management:

- Board of Cirectors (B0} Ak Management Sub-Committes;

- Integrated Risk Management Committes (IR} which comprises of the President / Chief Executiva
Officer (CED), Group Head Risk Mansgement, Business Heads, and Other Functional Heads.

= Assel- Liabdlity Committee which comprises of the President [/ Chief Executive Officer {CEQ), Treasurer,
Group Head Risk Management, Other Business Heads

- Rizk Management Group [RMG) which comiprises of Risk Managers for Credit, Market and Operational

Rigks, Treasury Middle Cffice and Credil Administration Departrmant incleding Special Asset Managemsent
Limdt,

Fi




411

RMG is managed by the Group Head Risk Management to supenviss the following Divisions:

aj Credit Risk Management [CAM) inciude both Corporate/Commeerciad & Small and Medium Enterprise
(SMEL Comsumer Risks

b Credit Administration Division (CAD) Inchuding Special Asset Management (SAM)

g} Dperational Risk Management

dj Market Risk Management [(MEN]

g) Treasury Middie Cffice

] Financial Institution Risk Management Unit {also responsible for Cross-border Risk Maragement)

v ]} Basal Il Implementation

The Banks RMG gensrates the requisite risk reporting for the different tiers of management, these are also
subjected to Internal Audit revlew,

filsk Categories
The Bank, in common with other banks, generates its revenues by accepting Country, Credit, Liquidity,

Interest Rate Risk In the Banking Book; Market., Operational and other Risks. Effective management of
thesa risks i the decishee factor in the Bank's profitability.

Risk Appetite
The Bank's risk appetite is reflected in its endeavours o mainiain a favourable credit ating and encompasses
the fodlowing:

= The business strategy

- The expectations of stakeholders at different time horizons

= The characteristics of the risk-bearing entities

- The nature and characteristics of the risks undertaken

- The possible spread of risk situations acrss organtzational units, assets-at-risk and future thme horlzons.

Risk appetite drives business activity. It combines antidpations In risk and profitability with management
préferances to controd caplial and resourde allocation, as weli as the distribution of exposure acnoss activithes

and portiolipe
The Bank's hediging stratiegy is ermbedded In &5 risk management practioes for sddnessing matesia] categores of fslc
Credit Risk

Credit risk, s the risk which arizes with the possibility that one party to 2 financial instrument will

fall to discharge ks obligation and cause the other party to Incur a fimancial loss. Credit risk Is managed
in terms of credit policies, approved by the BoD and regulations issued by the 58F, The Bank is exposed
e eredit risk on loans and advances, fund placements with financial institutkons and certain investments.
The Bank's strategy |s to minimize credit risk through product, geography, industry-and customer
diversification, Credit limits are established for all counter-parties after a careful assessment of their
credit worthiness. An effective credit granting procedure, which requires pre-sanction evaluation of th credit
propeszl, sdequacy of security and pre-dishursement examination of charge documents has been established
and managed by Risk Management Group (RMG) at the head office, The Bank maintains a sound portfolio

that is diversified In nature to counter the fsk of credit concentration and further Imits risk through
divarsification of its assets by geographical and industrial sactors, For managing impaired assets in the
partiollo, the Bank follow the Prudential Regulations and Risk Management guidelinaes ssued by 5BP and
the Remedial Managément Policy approved by the Board.

41.1.1  Segmental Information
Segmental information is presented in respect of the class of business and geographical distribution of
pdvances, deposits, contingencies and commitrments.
41.1.1.1 Segment by class of business
December 31, 2008 ot :
Contingenches and
Mdvances igross) Depaosits commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in 000 % [ i) o in 000 B
Mining end guarrying 132,653 1.35 30,770 0.0 = =
Textile 1,600,751 1629 57,239 037 A27.062 5.44
Chemical and
pharmaceiticals 1466713 14.92 153,145 1.00 136,265 227
CF5 financing 51333 0.52 - - - =
Footwear and leather
ganments 60511 062 61,141 040 = =
Automobile and
transportation egulpment 179,263 1.82 3,720 002 - =
Electronics and electrical
applianl:.Ei 507376 516 1,888 0o 5365 o0.09
Construction . - 21,269 .14 1,170 0.02
Power, gas, water and
sanitary . - 354,440 232 - =
Faper and board 459,118 0.50 10 . - =
Food 1.111.389 1.3 L2820 015 - i
Truest and non-profit
organizations 14918 015 1,712,352 11.20 * =
Wholesale and retall trade JCE.055 3162 331,141 217 - -
Transport, storage and
communication J00, 00D 305 197 4565 1.29 197,746 328
Fnancial 1.5987,174 0.2 3,890,906 2544 4457150 T4.10
Insurance 200,00 203 ECTA T 241 - i
Sandcms 216814 .1 309,559 202 56,263 1.60
individuals o05.450 9.25 6,138,115 4013 - =
Others 685,323 6.98 1,640,615 10.73 Te4.007 1320
9,828,843 100 15,294,273 100 6,015,028 100




Minlmg amd quartying

Textile

Chemical and
pharmaceuticals

CF5 financing

Footwear and leather
Garmaens

Automobilbe and
transportation equipment

Electronics and electrical
appliances

Construction

Porwier, gas, water and
sanitary

Paper and board

Foxoed

Trust and non-profit
organizations

Wholesale and retall trade

Transport, Storage and
communication

Finamciad

Insrance

SEemices

|Indknvicuials

Cithers

41,1.1.2 Segment by sector

Public [/ overmmient
Private

Publlc / Governmént
Private

w

Advances {gross)
Rupees Percent
im 'O %
818,313 1241
#88.337 740
1,992,747 N3
&, 554 092
2,298 0.03
562 oo
230,675 3.50
128,560 1.55
225,000 341
40,000 0461
1,259,741 1810
1,025225 1555
321,578 .88
6,593,635 100
Rupees Percent
in 000 k]
150,000 1.53
9.6?&34_3- 'E'-E#?
9,828 8473 100
Advances{gross)
Rupees Pencent
in 000 w
E,_SSI'E:IHE 100
6,593,635 100

in 000 %
18,780 0.4
35445 026
1,195,207 B4
42,846 03
1247403 912
14,329 0.10
73,330 054
12,236 016
1.045 11] |
2,760 oz
1.231.433 .00
319,351 .33
350,923 286
298,621 218
2613678 1911
l.‘:f..1 A 45:1 2
13,675 898 100
December 31, 2008
Rapees Pencent
In 000 %
930,764 G0S
14,363,509 nn
15204273 100
Drecernber 31, 2007
Aupees Percent
in 000 %
1,835,658 1342
11,844,240 8458
13,675,893 100

Contingencies and
Rupess Percent
I %
10,256 027
166,755 /45
3354 .09
18,375 076
155,000 4.4
3202310 B5.S0
31,470 .84
1525 0.08
144,701 3._&5
3,745 206 100
R S
commitments
In 000 %
68143 1.13
5._?4-5..3-3_5_ BH.E?
6,015,028 100
Contingendes and
eommitments
Rupees Parcent
in 000 %
51,258 137
3693968 9863
3,745,326 100

#1.1.13 Details of non-pesforming advances and specific
prondsions by class of businass segrment

Terxtile

Automabile and transportation
equipment

Electranics and electrieal appllances

Firarscial

Individuals

Crehier

December31,2008  December 31, 2007

Specific Speecific

Classified  provisions  Classified  provisions

edvances held advances held

Ruipeg jin ‘000
65,5966 65,5966 70642 Th&42
2,258 1,154 2,458 4250
G &2 662 (207
306,594 11.488

465,050 Tar 8594 a59
33,894 33,894 65,103 39,103
455504 122085 _ 14304 113804

41.1.1.4 Details of non-performing advancoes and specific

provisions by sector

Pubfic / GorvErmariini
Private

41.1.1.5 Geographical Segment Analysis

Pakistan

Pakistan

455,504 122,085 143,604 113,504
-l-.Sj'.i..:i_Qg!- 122,085 143,604 113,604

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2007
Total assats Metassets  Total assets Met assets
employed employed  employed employed
Rupess n '000

21627802 5275837 20327752 5,193,807

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Profit Contingencies Lass Contingencies
befora and befora and
taxation comemitments  @xation commitrments
- Rupess 6 00 ——————
111,225 6015028 [(62221) 3,745,206




4112 Credit Risk: Standardized Approach

The Bank has adopted the Standardised Approach of Basel |l for weighing its Credit Risk Exposunes.

The following table illustrates the approved External Credit Assessmient Instituthons (ECAls) whose ratings
are belng utilized by the bank with respect to material categories of exposurnes;

Exposures JCRWAS PACRA MODDY'S FITCH &P
Corporate ¥ L : -
Bynice 4 F ” ” r
SME's {Retall Exposures) ¥ ¥ - - -
Soversigns A MEA MEA MEA A
Securitizations MAA MAA MAA MAA MNAA
Orthers (Specify) A MR A MR WA

The Bank has used lssue Spacific Ratings for rating / risk welghing lssue Specific Exposures and Entity
Ratings for rating f risk welghing clalms against specific counterparties. Both short gnd long term ratings
have been used to rate cormesponding short and lang term exposures, For this purpose, Mapplng Grid
prowvidied by SEP has bean used.

#1.1.2.1 Credit exposures and comparative figures subject to the standardised approach

Decermber 31, 2008
Rating Rating Amount  Deduction Risk Weighted
Exposures  Category No.  RiskWeight OQutstanding CRM Netamount  Asset
———————— Rupees in 000
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0% 354,720 . 354,720
Corporate 0 0% . 514,472 514,472 -
1 20%  1B63814 (181.157) 2,682,657 536,531
2 509 749,387 : 749,387 374,694
34 100% - - - -
5.6 150% . , y .
Unrated 100% 6373857 (333,315) 6,040,542 6,040,542
9,987,058 - 6,987,058 6,951,767

Exposures Rating ftating

Amount

Category No. RiskWeight Outstanding

Retail %
20
50%
T5%:

Banks
- Cheer 3 Monthes {r¥
- Ciwer 3 Months 1 209
- Dwer 3 Months 23 S0
- Crvar 3 Months 4.5 10096
- Ovet 3 Months [ 150
Civer 3 Months Unrated 0%
= Maturity Upto and under {r¥
3 Months im FCY 1,23 20
45 50
& 150%:
unrated 20

Maturity Lipto and under 3 Months in PER 36
Maturity Upto and under 3 Months in PER 209

Residential Mortgage 5%
Public Sector Entity S0
Sovereigns [SBP / GoP) %
Equity Investments = Listed 100%
= Unilisted 150%:
5P loss than
Past Due Loans 0% 150%
{Not Secured by
Residential Mortgages) 5P upto 205 100
5P greatar 50
thaun 5086
Imvestment In fixed assets 100%:
Other Assets 100%
Total

* Credit Hick Mitkgamiom (CHM)

356,00
556,009

5,061

103,500
108561

AT IES

155857
583,782

1305516
1305616
132,660
150,000
4578214
723,324

T334

2B 9T

34,446

333418
875703
297222

19,986,757

Decernbar 31, 2008
eduction
CRM Met amowun’

Rupess in 000

22805 L2 A0S

(22,805} 533274

= 5,061

103,50
- 108561

2 2T SES

155,857
= S,Ej_rm
316428 Sle4r8
(516,42 786,168
- 1305616

- 132,660
- 150,000

= 4578214

FFEE .

- 298973

- 334w
: 875,703
29T 28

19,986,757

Risk Weighted

10,079 853




41.1.2.2 Credit exposures and comparative figures subject to the standardised approach December 31, 2007
Rating Rating Amaunt  Deducthon Rk Welghted
December 31, 2007 Rupees in 000
Rating Rating Amount  Deduction Risk Weighted
Exposures CategoryNo.  RiskWeight Outstanding  CAM  Netamount  Asset
Rupees In OO0 ——————— Residential Mortgage 15% 55,927 . 55927 18574
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0% 145328 - 145328 : Public Sector Entity
Corporate ] . TR A53 JTE RS . Soverelgns (58P £ GoP) 5,084,331 5,084 351 .
1 Flng ] 1,486,087 . 1ABEDET FL- P I ;
s S 131,903 - 131,003 655953 Equity Investments - Listed 10 539,363 - 9,363 529,363
34 1005 8,253 - 8253 8253 - Unlisted 1 50%: - - - .
56 150% - - : - 529,363 - 529,363 520,363
Unrated 100% 5893250  (I7EASY) 54143 5614357 - ' o -
7,519,453 7519453 5585419 Past Due Loans 5.F less
{Not Secured by than20%  150%
Retall 0% IB054 28,054 Residential Mortgages)
g ] : : - - 5P upto 2056 Ly 30,000 - 30000 30,000
S5 - . . - 5P grester
75% 296,508  (28,054) 270,454 202841 than 50% 50% - . - :
198,508 294,508 202841 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
- Dvier 3 Months i - - . - Investment In fixed assets 100% 1B5.615 . 145,619 385615
= Ot 3 Moniths 1 e, 148807 188 507 37721 x
= Ovar 3 Moniths 23 5% 136800 136,500 BEA00 Other Assets s, 464,013 454,013 454,013
- Over 3 Months 45 100% i
Orver 3 Months f 1505 - : . - Total 18544, 165 - 186446, 165 B.347. 300
- O 3 Months Unrated St . . - . * Credit Risk Mitigation [CRM)
325407 - 325,407 106,121
- Maturity Lipto and under ik . . .
# Months In FCY 123 o TS ) ST AR ol 41.1.2.3 Policies and processes for collateral valuation and management as regards Basel [l
i coain For Credit Risk Mitigation purpases the Bank uses only the eligible collaterals under Simple Approach of
’ i Criedit Risk Mitigation under Standardized Approach as prescribed by SBP under Circular No. 8 of 2007,
unrated i e A .8 which Includes Cash and Cash Equivalent Securities induding Government Securiiies (like Cash Margins,
NLNG - 217.1é 43543

Lien on Bank Accounts, Forelgn Deposit Recelpts, Term Deposit Recelpts, Pledge of Defense Saving
Certificates, Regular Income Certificates, Special Saving Cortificates, T-BHls and Pakistan Investment Bonds

 Maturity Upto and under 3 Months in PR 0% L i LML N etc.) and Shares Listed on the Main Index.

= Maturity Upto and under 3 Months in PKR  20% 3591004 (1188968 1407035 480,407

3391008 . —= 3591004 48040/ Under the Bank’s poficy all collaterals are subject 1o perodic valuations to monior the sdequscy of margns

held. Shares/Marketable securities are valued by the Bank on weekly basis to calculate the Drasving Power
{DF). In case of any shortfall in the requisite marging, the DP s adjusted to the appropriate level and the
business units are informed o take sppropriate action as per the agreement with the customer,

- B2




412 Equity Position risk in the banking book

Equity Pasition in the banking book includes Investments in equities that are available for sale or held for
strategic imvestment purpases, These investments are generally regarded as riskier relative to fieed income
secutities owing to the inherent volatility of stock market prces. The Bank mitigates these risks through
diversification and capping maximum exposures in a single sectonfcompany, compliance with regulatory
requirements, following the guidelines lald down in the Bank's investment Pollcy as set by the Bolll. The
Bank follows a delivery warsis payment settloment system thereby minimizing risk and available sk in
relation to settlement risk

Decembaer 31, 2008

Cost Market  Un-realised
value gain / {loss)
— R 0 0 ———

Avaliable for sale securities
Listed equity investment 450,030 155,934 [290,0496)
Imvestment in preference shares - listed Q5,503 109,127 13,624
Investiment In closed end mutual funds 28,164 7,603 (20.561)
Imvestment In open end mutual funds 275,000 117,902 (163, 0:58)

Strategic Investment
Irvestment in chosed end mutusl funds 293347 94,941 (198,406}
1,142,044 483,507 (658,537}
December 31, 2007
Cost Market Un-realised
value gain / (loss)
— R 0 00—

Avallable for sale securities
Listed equity investment 352,904 3B6,628 33,534
Imvestment In preference shares - listed 85,503 G4.434 (1,055}
Investment In closed end mutual funds 2 2 -

Strategic Investment

Imvesiment In closed end mutual funds 293,347 319,381 26,034

741,846 500,445 58,504

Thie cumiilative realised gains / {losses) arlsing from sales and liguidation in the reporting period.
December 31,  December 31,
2008 2007
—— Rupees n 000 —

Avallable for sale sacurities 169306 132881

41.3 Market risk

4131 Market risk bs the risk of loss due to adverse changies in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices
and market conditions. From the perspective of a Bank, market risk comprises of interest rate risk; foreign
exchange risk and equity position risk, which the Bank is exposed to in both its trading and banking books.

The Bank has an approved market risk framework whornein the govermance structure for managéng market
rigk, maasurement tools used and the market risk exposure limits have been addressad. The Bank's stratecy for
managing market risk 5 to relate the level of fsk exposiunes to their fisk appetite and the capital at hand.

The Board of Directors (30B} and the Asset and Liabifity Committee (ALCO) are responsible for
addressing market risk from a strategic perspective and are assisted by the market risk function in meeting
these objectives.

The market risk function is also supported by personnel in the Middle Cffice function and directly reports
to Group Head Risk Management, its function includes ensuring the implementation of the market risk
framewark above in line with the Bank’s strategy.

Risk reporting undertaken by the market risk function incledes:
a) Stress testing of the market portfolio; and

b) Limit menitosing reports
Hedging measumes ane undertaken to malntain limits set ot in the risk management framawork.
I addition, the Bank is tsing the foflowing to ascertain the impact af market risk.

Factor Sensitivities
Stress Testing

Currently, the Bank isusing the market risk standardized approach for the purpose of computing regulatory
capital, the details of which are set out in note 40,3,

41.3.2 Foreign Exchange Risk
Main oblective of forelgn exchange risk management 5 To ensune that the forelign exchange exposure of
the Bank [les within the defined appetite of the Bank.

Ciaily reparts are genaaied to monitor the intemal and requlatony imits with respect to the overall forelgn
currency exposures and thase in different currencies. The overall net open pasition, whether shart or long
has the potential to negatively impact the profit and loss depending upon the direction of movement in
foreign exchange rates.

Forelgn exchange open and mismatched positions are marked to be marketed on a dally basls,




Currancy risk arises whers the value of financial instruments changes due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. In order to manage currency risk exposure the Bank enters into ready, spot forward and swap
transactions with SBP and in the interbank market. The Bank's forelgn exchange exposure comprises of
forward contracts, foreign curmencles cash in hand, balances with banks abroad, foreign placement with
L8P and fomelgn currencles assets and |labilities. The net open position is managed within the statutony
limits, &s fisaed by SBR. Counter parties Himit ane also freed to llmit risk concentration. Appropriate segregation
of duties exists betwsen the front and back office functions while compliance with the net open position

lImit ks Inde dently manitored onan oing basis,
e ! e December 31, 2008 -
Off-balance  Net foreign
sheet CUrmency

Assets Liabdlities items EXposure
e Rupness i 000
Pakistan rupee 20,398,303 15,100,488 (177,631} 5120184
United States doblar 1,111,545 S5 B90 6,133 152,788
Great Britain pound 43,801 105,558 62,354 597
Eusrey 71,600 180,705 109,350 285
Other currencies 2553 324 (246) 1,983

1,229,499 1251477 177,631 155,653
21627802 16,351,965 — 5.275837

December 31, 2007 _
Off-balance  Net foreign
sheet currency
Assets Liabilities items EexposUne

———— Rupeesin 000
Fl!ﬂlﬂlﬂ fupee ig'.ﬂﬁlﬁlrl"lltﬂ 13-.-9&1.“:“ iﬁ-'?.:.l,ﬁi'l:l 5‘.‘9 LH-‘J'H
United States doliar 351466 || 996898 645370 62
Gr@at Hﬂuin Wuﬁd ﬁﬁ.i“ 59,9.?! {5,4?5: G4
Eura 39,908 95,735 55,828 91
iy ascicies 3526 534 @2,101) 891

451 334 1,153,041 633621 1,914
20,327,752 15,133,945 v 5,193,807

4133 Equity Position Risk in Trading Book
The Bank's obisctive with regard to holding equity imvestments s s trading book ks to-earm income from
favourable market movements. Pasitions in the equity market are substantiated by sound fundamental
and techinical research,

Equity price risk is managed by appiving trading limit and scrip-wise and portiollo wise nominal lmits,

41.3.4 Yield / Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)-Basel il

In order to guantify the Interest rate risk senskitivity on assets and Habdlitles of the Bank, the Bank performs
portiolio stress tests under certaln assumptions to assess the impact on the Bank's capital adequacy. This
exercise b conducted under SBP guidelines on stress testing. Accordingly, assets and liabilitles as of
December 31, 3008 have been subject to different shock levals [assumed rise in Interest Hate levels) The
analysis implies that consequent Impact on the Bank’s overall CAR would be -0.3%, -0.6% and -1.5% with
corresponding increase of 19, 2% and 5% in interest ratz lgvels respectively. On account of insignificant
exposure in different curmencies, the resultant impact belng immaterial has nat been taken Into account.
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415 Operaticnal risk

The Bart currsntly uses Basic Indicator Approach to Operational Risk for reguintony capital caloulations. 'We defina
the operational fsk a5 the fik of lass resulting from inadegquate of falfed Intemal processes, people and System of
Froem extemal esents. 'With the evolution of Operations Risk management into a sepasate distines dissipline, the Bank's
sategy i to further smengthen Bs dsk management system along nevw indusiry standards. Aocordingly the Bank
has 5ot up a sepatate Operational Risk Management Linkt {ORM),

O Uit ressicless within the Risk Management Group (RAMG), Its responsibility |s te implement Qperational Risk
Marmgement toals aomss the Bank for effective measurement and monitering of cperational sk faced by diffarent
ameas of the Bank.

Then Bantk has Implemaented a Risk Sell Aszessment Methodology called the Internal Contral Baleation Process {(ICEF)
Framework aoross the bank. The ICEP framaework ovorooks the Risk Contred and Self Assessment (RCSA) that has been
Implemented across the Bank to monitor and aaeess the imernal controls in the Bank. Moo, the Bank s in the
process of revising procedural manuals and (mplementing best practices though-out the Bank. This project is inthe
eomplethon stages.

Currenthy, the ORM s Bvvolved inthe Operational Risks profiling attivity swiherelsy higher leve| loey risks are being
captured throegh Heat Maps io be distussed at Banks Integeated Risk rmanagermunt Committes level for follow up
and nesodution

Oxperathonal Loss data collection |5 govemnmed by Bank's TID Policy which hies been developed and mplemented o
collate operational losses ard near mitsses |0 a systematic and organized wiat Moreowsr, the Bank has put in place
comprehensive IT Secutfty Palloy which addresses enterprite wide risk drivers inclusive of technology Infrastructure,
softwane/hardware and IT security.

The Bank’s Business Continuity Policy (BCP) Includes risk management strategles tomitigate inherant iisk and prevent
Intermaptian of mission critcal services caused by a dissster evont

41 RECLASSIFRCATIONS

Following corresponding figures have been redassified for the purpose of better presentation:

Amaunt
Reclassificathon from Reclassification o PRupae jin 000
Other Assets Cperathng Theed asiets 1,463,634
Creer Assats Imvestments T D

43.  DATED OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These Financial Staternents wemn authorized for issue on Sanch 02, 2009
44, GEMERAL
441 The figure in the financlal statemants have been rounded off to the pearest thoausand.
44,2 Captions, as presoribed by the B50 Cireular Mo, 04 dated February 1 7, 2006 Issued by the State Bank of Pakistan, with

respec io which there are no amours, have not been repraduced i these financial statemenis except forin the
balance sheet and profit and loss scooumi

Jahanglr Siddigul
Chalrman

Mavesd Qazl
President & Chief Executive

Rafique A. Bhimjee
Director

Syed Amjad All

Direcior
)
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SHAREHOLDER'S STATISTICS

As at December 31, 2008

Ma. of Shareholders

301
1422
1478
£B56
893
339
193
&7
94
42
48
24
63
13
19
1
13
21

&

10

&

%

Isd
L ]

i G0 e L P W o= R B L B L R W LR e A 3 B

Fromm

1

1
i1
o
%001
100401
15007
20007
23001
30001
3500
40001
45001
50007
55000
B0007
65001
Fo00
5001
BOOAT
a5001
L0001
Q5001
100001
1as0m
110001
11500
120001
125001
130001
135001
T40001
14501
150001
155001
160007
165001
oo
175001
180001
18500
195001
200001

Sharehaldings

To

100
300
1000
5000
10000
15000
20000
35000
30000
35000
40000
45000
30000
55000
&0000
G000
70000
FE000
B0000
B5000
S0000
25000
100000
105000
110000
1 15000
120000
125000
130000
135000
140000
145000
1 50000
155000
160000
165000
170000
175000
180000
185000
150000

205000

PATTERMN OF SHAREHOLDING
FLORM 34

THE COMPANIES ORDIMANCE 1984
[Section J3601) and 454)

Total Share Held

Q853
1,626
142059605
&aT912
7.234 540
A4 174 065
1,500,262
3273270
2,691 614
1,400,367
1847201
1,262,373
3078987
£04,990
1,112,438
696,007
BBO,612
1,540,555
474,600
B22.020
ES TR
373,500
25417 708
#11.546
538910
446,563
237.500
363617
638,953
400,154
547811
432,005
3000, 000
763,628
629,284
32A.B45
10,000
BG7. 779
354,920
ry.028
189,541

1. 756, 600
J0XBIG




(=] ==
Shareholdings Sharehoidings
Me. of Shareholders From To Total Share Held Mo. of Shareholders From To Total Share Held
1 205001 210000 207 000 1 131500 1320000 1.315,000
1 21000 215000 FAE N ] 1 1540001 1545000 1,5 5, O
] 215001 2 20000 218,700 1 1Fe5E00 1E00000 150000
2 220001 225000 448,699 1 TEF00eN TETS000 1,874,500
F 230007 235000 465,074 1 2020001 2025000 2,020,250
] 235001 240000 240,000 ] 2135001 2140000 136,000
4 245000 250000 Do 689 ] 29850 3000000 3,000,000
i 250001 255000 253312 ! IS 10001 351 5000 3,574,000
1 255001 FE0000 256,195 1 4605001 Al DG 4605407
1 265001 270000 165,445 1 4610001 461 5000 4614479
1 F70001 2750040 173,600 1 S5R5001 S500000 S.REHT 32
1 275001 2BO000 277,500 i S7R500 670000 &, 788,000
1 250001 205000 265,000 ] QERSOMN SES0000 QEEG.000
& 205001 00000 1,758.201 1 2000000 2000500 20,000, 00
] 3050 3 V0000 306,750 1 021000 2021 5000 202134832
i 310001 15000 315,000 1 20745001 20750000 20746513
3 315001 320000 852812 1 23460001 23465000 23 4600, 504
] 340001 345000 343,104 1 331 A5 33170000 33,165 500
1 345007 350000 345,500 ] JE00650d1 JED0 0 260,069.3204
1 350001 355000 351,750 B e - s —-
Fi JB0007 85000 764,342 8177 510,633,750
1 365001 I90000 388,500 EE s e s s s e s R N ANy A —
] 39000 335000 351,000
1 405001 410000 405,500
i 410001 415000 411,000
! 415001 420000 418,500
1 470001 AT SO0 475,000
F i 4595001 00000 1,000,000
] S00007 S0S000 502,000
1 515001 520000 518346
] 5300 535000 G348 605
1 545001 550000 549,750
1 595001 G000 00,000
] 500 G50000 650,000
] 725001 T 30000 728,000
i J95001 BOOOOO B0, O
1 BOOGD BOS000 801,913
! 1095001 T 100000 1.1 0 (e
1 1 10000 1 105000 1,105,000
i 1155001 1 160000 1,157,000
1 1200001 1205000 1,200 500
1 1205001 121000 1,209,080




Categaries of Shareholders

Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

Insurance Companies

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and thelr
Spouse and Minor Children

Jahanglr Slcdbgil

Mazhar-ul-Hag Skdeflgul

Maqisoal Ahmed Saomno

Ashraf Nawabl

Rafique A.Bhim|es

Syed Amjad Al

Baslr Shamsle

Naveed Oax

Akhter labeen

Hafsa Shamsie
Sub-ntals:

Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related
Farties.

lahangir Siddiqul & Co. Limited
American Bxpress Bank Limdted

Sub-totals
Modarabas and Mutual Funds.
MWIT and ICF
IDBF (ICF Unit)

Mathanal Bank of Pakistan, Trustes Deptt

Inwestment Conp OF Pakistan

MEP Trustes = NIUIT Loc) Fund
Sub-iotals:

Foreign Investors

Shares Held

20,294.853

14,052,953

1

BO1, 914
14

1

B2,013

1

1
3,000,000
218,700
273,600
4,376,245

293,338,704
20,000,001
313238705

3,105,734

5,467
20,747 241
873
L.746.513
&1 A 193

1,533,218

Fercentage
T
397

&1

.86

61.34

u.a1

Others 19,686,406 386
Individual
Local - Individuats 82,845,343
Sub-Totals : 82,845,343 _ 1622
G-Totals: 510,633,750" 100.00

*This does not includs 58 850 543 right shares allotted on Decamber 28, 3008 and credited in (06 aocounts

ol the respective shareholders on January (13, 2009,




Details of transactions carried out by Directors, Chief Il St Anl Canerd Mg
Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), i
Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children during 15 Bark iited

Shaheen Commendal Complex

the period from January 01, 2008 to December 31, 2008. i . Zucidin Abimad Road

Pl B AT Wsrachl-Ta4 200, Paldatan

LAe of heing members] of
! 15 Bank Umited. holding _ Cindiruary Shares o pet Registonst Folio Mo CDC
fie Mo (For rsmibers wito haven shares i C0E] hereby appaling Mr.
Shareholding.  Right Shares Sale  Rate  Shareholding - of hll addrass)
a5 01,001 /08 Subscribed® (A=l a5 0N
311408
¢ Talling Famaher e — ol (]
Mr. Maghool Ahmed Soomrm 14 ’ - 10 16 | mifidnes)
Mr. Rafiqus AL Bhimjes 82013 16,402 - [} SHA415 ) - A - S " - )
x i s iy Jf OOF poody 10 tEendd, Bot an e fowr e fug el gk e 00 i at the nmasl Gereral Mesting o
Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah 75,000 135,000 9 90,000 the Company to be held on March 30, 2009 and / or any adipumment thenes],
Mrs, Hafsa Shamsie 273600 54,700 - 10 R0

A witness sy fouir hand sl this day of 2006 shgred by
i the presesie of {name & sddnesa)
= The aforesaid Right Shares wene subscribad by the Directors, CFO, Company Secretary named above in

accordance with their respective entitlement as existing shareholders of the Bank, ] Witress;
| 1, ame

Sigranee

A reTs

CHIC o

Passport Ko

2 Marne e ne U
Ferverar Loarmr

Sigratisy

A e 3 %y g oule reun T e
e e e mhred e LAy

LN oo

Fasyport o

Important:

L4 rwrrier o rhe Doy Fro sl o ST e e Y SSEE T ST AT i e aray marerd sl s ireoesd of it

J-Thils Prewey “ravm, iy coavgowiva] ansl e wam far iy o the e of 1he Lirroary e o Teaieen Corrmeeeed [ o O Jhearicke
A Trged Lwnife TT0C ok e B 4B e tarfue v e s reieTea) T rraaeseg

T Fao e ninall 57 a0 ganary wniew b e worae T m e menmisEr of U Corepa s mecEm rh a Turnosinr My Seae & e v Lo a
T

a5 PUETITET I DETEE T e T DFW T 01 A P TRET. O RSP O Ty e oEra el by o rveendas wirh mep Corpurny o8 wah
SE . = (f prsy Lhall oF i eeale

Frerarial Drwmer of e pivaacs’ wharm gnd 11 shames iegress oo o e el Cermry Depoemey Ciargeinyy o Petssran el 000 L foe e
AT e ki) o peedce e g ol Ceye serbued fam Sl et Dol ACNEC o S B blaniifestioe purmone af e o of! uerling
TaedTEE] el S o ey el b b worh 1l CopuTy e e Ul wimen, Suly i el Ty e e el Ra T, R
e T reaier mrom b remsinens o0 e v, ey wtth areerrd rgiec of [N ot ramer of i Rereiicls overar o S oy, i cone
of § Erapaprs ey, T Bowed of Wrpreey At tioe | Fosas o kmormey Song nofe 3 Gaec e gt ais vhull S eoomaieesd e b Ral nesn

s reisliegd vl B howa) el i o penary e rhe Diemiemen




AFFLE
CORAECT
PUGTAGE

The Company Secretary

JS Bank Limited

Shaheen Commercial Complex

Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road

PO. Box 4847 Karachi-74200, Pakistan




